

LONDON BOROUGH OF SUTTON
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY FORUM
TUESDAY, 10TH NOVEMBER, 2015

7.00 pm at the Civic Offices
Civic Offices, St Nicholas Way, Sutton SM1 1EA

To all members of the Equality and Diversity Forum:Chair:
Vice-Chair
Councillors:

Councillor Adrian Davey
Debbie O'Neil
Callum Morton, Nali Patel, Hanna Zuchowska and Holly Ramsey.
Councillor Pathumal Ali

Niall Bolger
Chief Executive
Civic Offices
St Nicholas Way
SUTTON
SM1 1EA

Enquiries to: Simon Breeze Tel: 020 8770 4276 Email: simon.breeze@sutton.gov.uk
Victoria Lawson Tel: 020 8770 5779 Email: victoria.lawson@sutton.gov.uk

Copies of reports are available in large print on request

2

AGENDA

1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATION OF SUBSTITUTES

2.

MINUTES (Pages 3 - 10)
Confirmation of minutes and matters arising from the meeting on 14 July 2015.
Indicative time: 5 minutes

3.

NIALL BOLGER ON THE EQAULITY AND DIVERSITY CHAMPIONS
GROUP
Niall Bolger, Chief Executive to present on Sutton’s Equality and Diversity
Champions Group.
Indicative time: 30 minutes

4.

LIBRARIES CONSUTLATION (Pages 11 - 88)
Jan Underhill (Executive Head of Wellbeing) and Madeline Barratt (Head of
Libraries, Heritage and Arts) to lead a discussion on Sutton’s Libraries
Consultation.
The consultation can be accessed via this link.
Indicative time: 25 minutes

5.

REFUGEE CRISIS
Discussion of the Council’s response to the crisis.
Lorri Dawson, Vice Chair of the Sutton Refugee and Migrant Network.
Indicative time: 35 minutes

6.

HATE CRIME REPORT (Pages 89 - 92)
Chris Lyons, Safer Sutton Partnership, to provide an update on hate crime in
the Borough.
Indicative time: 10 minutes

7.

UPDATES

3

Update from the Black and Minority Ethnic Forum (Joseph Jeffers, Sutton
Centre for Equalities)
Indicative time: 5 minutes

8.

EVENTS
Simon Breeze, Commissioning and Business Insight Manager, to provide an
update on events.



Holocaust Memorial Day Planning
Bi Visibility

Indicative time: 5 minutes
9.

ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS
Opportunity for any urgent business to be brought forward at the direction of
the Chair, who has approved the reason for urgency.

4

CIVIC OFFICES, SUTTON
GROUND FLOOR MEETING ROOMS
FIRE PRECAUTIONS
If there is a FIRE in the building the fire alarm will sound continuously. Leave the
building immediately by the most direct route, either back through reception or the
fire exit into Lower Square. Take your coat and any bags with you. Assemble in the
car park in front of the Holiday Inn.
First Aid can be obtained from Civic Security in reception.

Toilet

Toilet
Room 1

Toilet

Toilet

Reception

Room
5

Room
4

Fire
Exit

Room
2

Room
3

Fire
Exit

Lower Square
Entrance

Holiday Inn
Car Park

Reminder – Declaration of Interests
Members should consider the following interests and whether they have any they
should declare.
Personal interests:
Where it might reasonably be regarded that a matter will affect the well-being or
financial position of you, a member of your family, any person with whom you have a
close association, or any person or body with which you or they are involved or in
which they have a relevant beneficial interest, to a greater extent than the majority of
people affected by the decision.
In this case you should declare the interest and state the nature of it.
Personal and Prejudicial Interests:
Where a personal interest is thought to be so significant that a member of the public,
with knowledge of the facts, would consider it likely to prejudice the member’s
judgment of the public interest.
In this case you should declare the interest, state the nature of it, and leave the
meeting room.
Further information can be found in the Council's Code of Conduct and Protocol. If
you are in any doubt as to whether you have an interest you should seek advice
before the Committee meeting from Democratic Services.
If, during the course of the Committee meeting, you consider you may have an
interest you should always declare it.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY FORUM
7PM TUESDAY 14 JULY 2015
WELCOME ROOM, SUTTON INCUSION CENTRE
DRAFT MINUTES
ATTENDEES
Adrian
Hanna
Joseph
Joan
David
Megan
Jonathan
Justin
Victoria
Jisa

Davey
Zuchowska
Jeffers
Parker
Parker
Perryman
Williams
Walker
Lawson
Prasannan

Councillor (Chair)
Councillor
Sutton Centre for Equalities (Chief Officer)
Sutton Carer's Forum
Sutton Carer's Forum
Stonewall
LBS LGBT Staff Network
LBS LGBT Staff Network
Head of Policy, Leadership and Governance, LBS
Commissioning and Business Insight Officer, LBS

Staff at the Sutton Inclusion Centre were thanked for hosting this meeting of the Equality and Diversity
Forum. Members of the Forum were informed that a tour of the excellent facilities at the Centre was
available after the meeting.
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATION OF SUBSTITUTES
Apologies were received from the following members of the Forum.
Callum
Morton
Councillor
Pathumal
Ali
Councillor
Nali
Patel
Councillor
Holly
Ramsey
Councillor
Debbie
O'Neil
Citizens Advice Bureau (Vice Chair)
Janet
Smith
Carshalton College
Frank
Brown
Sutton Centre for Independent Learning and Living
Razia
Sattar
Sutton Centre for the Voluntary Sector
Toni
Walsh
Sutton Housing Partnership
Lorri
Dawson
Sutton Refugee and Migrant Network
Rev. David
Dickinson
Ecumenical Borough Deans
Ian
Kershaw
Safer Sutton Partnership
2.

MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING FROM MEETING ON 14 APRIL 2015 (Pages 1-34)

Minutes were confirmed as an official record of events.

3.

ROUNDTABLE DISCUSSION ON SUPPORTING OUR LGBT COMMUNITY (Pages 35-38)

The Chair introduced the item and explained that the purpose of this roundtable discussion was to
understand how good the Council and its partners were and how they could improve in supporting
the Borough’s LGBT community when producing policy and commissioning/delivering services. It
was not intended to be a critique, but rather an ideas generating session which could be feedback to
senior managers or committees to influence decision making.
Megan Perryman from Stonewall gave a presentation on the history of Stonewall and the
development of legislation to support LGBT people. As many of the legislative battles have been
won, Stonewall were now focusing on changing hearts and minds by empowering people at home,
schools and work. For example, teacher training to support students throughout their school life and
supporting employers to ensure they provide safe places to work. The Forum were informed that
Stonewall were now a LGBT charity.
The Forum were informed that Sutton were part of the Diversity Champions Programme run by
Stonewall and would this year, for the first time, be completing their workplace equality index
assessment. A question was asked about who would own the assessment and taking forward the
feedback received from Stonewall. It was confirmed that the LBS Equality Champions Group, chaired
by the Chief Executive of the Council, would take ownership. It was agreed the assessment could be
shared with the Forum members for the learning purposes of other organisations.
Action: LBS Workplace Equality Index be shared with Forum members once completed.
Jonathan Williams gave an introduction to the work of the LBS LGBT Staff Network. He explained
that from a staff network and personal perspective, the London Borough of Sutton values and
encourages diversity – flying the flag for Pride Week is one such example. The Staff Network was set
up 6 months ago. It came out of the need for visibility and what he learnt in the Stonewall Role
Model course. The course prompted thought on what individuals could do for the organisation or for
other individuals. The Network continues to have a link with Stonewall. It was recognised that the
Staff Network needed to come to a consensus on the purpose of the Network going forward and the
Network identified that as well as being a support group, members of the Network also had a duty
as officers of the Council towards the public. The Network has therefore begun to have ‘important
conversations’ with Children’s and Adult Services.
The important conversation with Children’s Services involved asking senior managers to fill out
questionnaires asking questions such as whether they knew who their LGBT users were and how
they were recognising their needs. This led to discussions around bullying, supporting young people
with their identity, care leavers, foster carer, and assessing the need of LGBT service users when
commissioning Children’s Services.
The Staff Network currently has a small membership. There has been a recruitment drive recently,
but there have been no new joiners. A question was asked about whether heterosexual staff could
join the Network. The Network has discussed this as a possibility for the future. Stonewall advised
that LGBT groups generally tend to work best to begin with, with just LGBT members. Other things
have been done to improve the Network’s visibility e.g. setting up a LGBT Staff Network Google+

Community. Visibility of LGBT people could be improved in the Council and across the borough e.g.
representing LGBT people and families on posters in the Council, schools, youth clubs etc.
Justin Walker, also a member of the LBS LGBT Staff Network, spoke about their ‘important
conversation’ with the then Adult Social Services, Housing and Health Directorate. This took the
same format as Children’s and considered LGBT needs in respect of housing, social care,
homelessness etc. Barriers to collecting data to identify protected characteristics, particularly when
working with vulnerable adults was discussed. For example, there seemed to be very few responses
to a question asked about the user’s sexual orientation but this is the sort of information which
would be very useful when assessing need for commissioning activities. Stonewall has an easy to
understand leaflet called “what’s it got to do with you?” to explain why it is important to ask
questions around the protected characteristics. This was offered to the Council as it could be useful
for our frontline staff.
Action: Megan Perryman to send “What’s it got to do with you?” leaflets to Victoria Lawson.
In the borough of Sutton there is a LGBT Forum, but a question was asked about what other help
was available in order to support the LGBT community? It was agreed that it was important for the
Council and its partners to find out from its providers on what support they provided and what user
data they collected.
Different LGBT people will have different needs e.g. BME LGBT people, LGBT people with mental
health needs, or older LGBT people. It was recognised that culture and religion may have a huge
impact on LGBT people in the borough. Visibility and invisibility of different groups was also
discussed. Stonewall were working hard within their organisation and those they support, to provide
role models and make LGBT visible and inclusive for all people.
There was a discussion about how the Council and the Forum could improve its approach to
supporting LGBT people when making key decisions and policies:


There was shortly due to be an Integrated Impact Assessment Campaign internally.



The Council does not currently have a Trans policy, this was a potential area for
development.



The Council could perhaps do more work with young people around LGBT issues, subject to
proper safeguarding being in place.



Hearing directly from people/role-models via podcasts could be much more powerful than
reading a report. Other digital options like Google+ Communities and videos could also be
explored.



Could use the Life Centre to highlight LGBT issues to young people as this is not currently
covered in the education content.



The LGBT Forum have recently donated 20 LGBT related books to Sutton Central Library.



Different LGBT groups in the borough e.g. the Sutton LGBT Forum, the Sutton Youth LGBT
Forum, and the LBS LGBT Staff Network could work more closely together whilst recognising
they are distinct groups with different objectives.



All LGBT groups need to be made to feel inclusive recognising the different groups and
characteristics among LGBT people and be truly representative of the local community.



Need to establish what good looks likes for the Council and its partner organisations in the
voluntary sector. Stonewall could perhaps help with this. Manchester CC and Brighton &
Hove Council were identified as good examples, but a lot of this was community driven
rather than Council driven – but these examples could be looked at to see how this drive has
impacted policy and decision making.



Stonewall may look to develop their workplace employment index to include more about
service users rather than just staff. This would be very helpful for public sector organisations
like the Council.



It was suggested that the BME Forum, when celebrating Black History Month, could get
LGBT speakers at their event and the Forum could also put forward an item on LGBT people
for a future agenda.

Actions:


LBS to carry out a wider survey of the voluntary sector on LGBT, similar to the important
conversations by the LGBT Staff Network.



LBS to develop a trans policy, working with Stonewall.



LBS to liaise with the Life Centre re: possibility of providing educational content around
LGBT.



Stonewall to send LBS examples of what good looks like.



BME Forum to try and organise LGBT speaker for Black History Month and have an item on
LGBT people on future Forum Agenda.

Thanks were given to Cllr Zuchowska for proposing the motion that the Council fly the Rainbow Flag
for Pride Week.
6. HATE CRIME REPORT (Pages 77-80)
The Chair deferred this item due to the low numbers of attendees in attendance.
7. UPDATES
Black and Ethnic Minority Forum
The Forum were informed by Joseph Jeffers that there was Hate Crime training available, 25 people
were needed for the training and to contact Debbie O’Neill if interested.
Action: LBS to share this information with the Forum and publicise in Insight.

Human Rights Act
Jisa Prasannan, Commissioning and Business Insight Officer provided an update on the Human Rights
Act.
The Conservative government has pledged to abolish the Human Rights Act and replace it with a
new British Bill of Rights. The Human Rights Act 1998 became law in 2000. It brought the rights
contained in the European Convention on Human Rights into UK law. The Convention contains basic
rights and freedoms which every citizen in Europe is entitled to. It includes the rights to life, liberty
and security, a fair trial, respect for private life, and freedom of expression. The Convention also
bans torture, slavery and discrimination. As a result of the Act, UK judges must read and give effect
to other laws in a way which is compatible with the Convention rights. It is also unlawful for public
authorities to act in a way which is incompatible with a Convention right.
Critics of the Human Rights Act claim it has led to perverse judgments. Supporters say that that by
scrapping the Human Rights Act, the UK will lose legitimacy and effectiveness in speaking out against
human rights abuses elsewhere.
The conservative government wants to replace the Human Rights Act with a Bill of Rights specifically
designed to fit British needs and traditions. It would mean that people in the UK would no longer be
able to bring their complaints to the European Court of Human Rights. The European Court of
Human Rights would no longer be able to order a change in UK law and would become an advisory
body only.
Human rights reform is very complicated and any changes would also need to tie into government
decisions on devolution to Scotland, Northern Ireland and Wales. There are also wider consequences
to be considered e.g. impact on UK’s membership of the Council of Europe, its commitments as a
member of the EU, and impact on international treaties such as the Good Friday Agreement.
Action: LBS officers to monitor the issues and keep the Forum updated.
5. INFORMATION & ADVICE OFFER UPDATE (Pages 63-76)
Victoria Lawson, Head of Policy, Leadership and Governance provided an update on the Information
and Advice Offer. A paper had been agreed at Strategy and Resources committee on 29th June.
Commissioning of the new information and advice offer would start shortly.
The Forum were asked to note progress.
6. SUTTON AUTISM STRATEGY FRAMEWORK (Pages 39-62)
Councillor Davey declared an interest in this item due to his role as Joint Mental Health
Commissioner for Sutton.
Apologies were given for Dominique Sydamah, who is the LBS officer working on this, for being
unable to attend the Forum.

Cllr Davey provided an introduction noting that not enough is done in this area. There had been lots
of guidance from central government in the past few years. We know what good looks like, but the
key question was how do we get there?
Victoria Lawson presented the slides attached to the Agenda. Victoria explained that this item had
been brought to the Forum to (i) make sure it is on the agenda as it has equality and diversity
elements, and (ii) use the Forum as a critical friend in the self assessment and future plans.
It was noted that there was an autism strategy group led by LBS but involving wider stakeholders.
This was going through a refresh at the moment due to the new government guidance.
A number of points were raised in the discussion:


Policy guidance needed to be set corporately with wider directions from directorates – to
take a top down and bottom up approach.



The challenge is that no two autistic people are the same. However, a baseline could be
established as to good practice.



The self-assessment, once completed, could be brought to Forum to seek examples to
reinforce or counter the assessment.



It was noted that Councillors may benefit from autism training as part of their member
training.

Actions:


Results from self-assessment to come back to the Forum for discussion next year e.g.
March 2016.



Copies of previous self-assessments to be circulated to the Forum.



Request for member training on autism to be raised with Dominique Sydahmah.

8. EVENTS
Jisa Prasannan, Commissioning and Business Insight Officer provided an update on events.
It was noted that a lot of events had taken place over the past couple of months.
Mental Health Awareness Week (11th to 17th May)
This year, the theme was mindfulness. We promoted our Embracing Mental Health Project to staff.
This project provides local people who have experienced mental illness with an opportunity to gain
competitive paid employment and work trials in the local area. In addition, the project provides local
employers with training and support provided by local organisations to create healthier workplaces
for people in the borough.
Volunteers Week (1st-7th June)

It was also the 50th anniversary of both Volunteer Centre Sutton and SCVS, as well as it being 50
years of local government. The Volunteer Centre Sutton hosted a Big Breakfast at the Europa
Gallery. This was an opportunity to say thank you to the Volunteers of Sutton, have breakfast, and
communicate the Centre vision for volunteering over the next 5 years.
Refugee Week (15th-21 June)
The Refugee and Migrant Network Sutton marked the week by celebrating the creative work of
students from many different cultures with an exhibition in the Europa Gallery. The students had all
taken part in a course called Crafty English which encourages them to learn new ways to express
themselves both in English and in craft skills. The course was led by local artist, Adrienne Roberts,
and it was supported by Arts Network Sutton.
Carers’ Week (8th-14th June)
The theme this year was building Carer-friendly Communities – communities that support carers to
look after their loved ones well, while recognising they are individuals with needs of their own. The
Mayor of Sutton, Cllr Muhammad Sadiq, held a lunchtime reception on 8 June in Sutton Civic Centre
to launch Carers’ Week, where he honoured Sutton’s carers and welcomed staff from Sutton Carers’
Centre and other prominent supporters of carers’ issues in the borough. Sutton Carers Centre
hosted a range of events throughout the week including a quiz night fundraiser.
Pride Week (21th-28th June)
The work the Council does to champion equality issues in the borough was symbolised by the flying
of the rainbow flag over the Civic Centre. Sutton’s LGBT Staff Network was also promoted to staff.
This year’s Pride Week had the theme of Pride Heroes to celebrate the people and organisations that
have contributed to LGBT rights over the years.
Armed Forces Day (25th June)
Sutton raised the Armed Forces Day flag on the High Street. The flag symbolised the support the
Council give and the debt we owe to the brave men and women who serve and have served our
nation around the world as soldiers, sailors and aircrew. The Mayor, Cllr Muhammad Sadiq, was
joined by the leaders of Sutton and Kingston Councils, Cllrs Ruth Dombey and Cllr Kevin Davies to
pay our respects to all Armed Forces personnel.
Remembering Srebrenica
Monday 6th July 2015 commemorated the 20th anniversary of the Srebrenica genocide. A service
was held at Westminster Abbey, including survivor testimony. The Charity Remembering Srebrencia
has expressed an interest in attending a future Forum meeting and inputting into our Holocaust
Memorial Day event next year.
Ramadan (18th June – 17th July)
Ramadan is the Muslim month of fasting during which Muslims observing Ramadan do not eat or
drink during daylight hours. During the fast, Muslims believe that they can gain understanding of
how those who are less privileged than them feel. We advertised an event to staff, organised by the

Ahmadiyya Muslim Women's Association of Cheam, which was a Ladies Only Evening of Faith &
Fasting, where there was a discussion on the role of fasting in different religions followed by a Break
the Fast dinner.

Report to:
Report title:
Report from:
Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

Environment and Neighbourhoods
Date 17th September 2015
The future of Sutton’s library service: options for savings and
permission to consult
Tolis Vouyioukas, Strategic Director People Directorate
Borough Wide
Councillor Jill Whitehead
Madeline Barratt, Head of Libraries, Heritage and Arts
020 8770 4755
● An Open Council
● A Fair Council
● A Smart Council

Open/Exempt:
Open
Signed (Insert electronic signature here)

Date:

(Insert date in full here)

1.
1.1

Summary
Under the 1964 Public Libraries and Museums Act the council as a Public Library Authority
(PLA) is obliged to provide a “comprehensive and efficient service” for all individuals who live,
work or study within the Borough and who are ‘desirous’ of using the service. The Act also
charges the Secretary of State with superintending the improvement of the public library
service in England and Wales and has the power to challenge a Public Library Authority’s
provision.

1.2

In Sutton, the challenge is to continue to achieve this while making substantial savings to meet
the Council’s funding gap of £40m, by 2019.

1.3

The purpose of this report is to outline the options for achieving the savings target of c £1m
from the library service by 2018/19 from an annual budget of £4.4m. Later savings will also be
required while remaining within the Act, delivering excellent services and developing a
financially sustainable network which is also compliant with the Council’s public sector equality
duty.

1.4

In order to deliver excellent services to local residents within a financially sustainable
framework the service needs to refocus and fundamentally review the core offer to local
communities and how this is delivered. While the service has traditionally been regarded as
being at the forefront of library services in London, development and innovation has been
static for some years now. The service needs to modernise to regain its position at the cutting
edge and in order to ensure that the priorities set out in the Library Strategy, already agreed by
Members, are achieved.

1.5

The difficulty facing Public Library Authorities in delivering services in a period of austerity was
acknowledged in the McKenna judgement in the Judicial Review taken against Gloucester and
Somerset County Councils of November 2011:
“The Section 7 duty cannot be exempt or divorced from resource issues and cannot in
law escape the reductions which have been rendered inevitable in the light of the
financial crisis engulfing the country.”

1

1.6

The Council adopted a Library Strategy for Sutton’s library service in January 2015, which sets
the strategic and operational direction for the service to 2019. There are four key aims:
● Literacy: growing the readers of the future
● Meeting the needs of an ageing population
● Narrowing the digital divide
● Creating a viable, sustainable and quality service within available budgets

1.7

This report presents options for the achievement of budget savings, whilst continuing to
maintain and in some areas of the library service, potentially enhance provision. A
comprehensive review of business processes and budget spend will take place in parallel, to
ensure internal efficiencies are taken first, protecting public service as far as is possible.

1.8

A comprehensive programme of consultation has been developed to involve staff, customers,
internal stakeholders such as Friends’ groups and external stakeholders, notably the
Department of Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) and Arts Council England (ACE), on a new
service model for Sutton’s libraries. A comprehensive programme of consultation is proposed,
to run for a 12 week period from 23rd September to 16th December 2015. Community profiles
will be available on the Council’s website.

1.9

In preparation for the consultation, comprehensive community profiles and assessment of
needs have been undertaken and the methodology for this is detailed in appendices to this
report.

1.10

Throughout we will be mindful of the lessons from the Secretary of State’s intervention in the
Wirral in 2009 and other more recent challenges, such as Judicial Reviews in Lincolnshire and
Somerset and Gloucester, and ‘not minded to intervene letters’ from the Secretary of State for
Culture, Media and Sport in the cases of Bolton and Sheffield.

1.11

In the current financial climate, the library sector faces difficult decisions about how to manage
and plan its services within the context of a need to reduce operating costs to meet its savings
target over the next four years. The scale of the efficiency savings required necessitates a
more fundamental assessment of existing models of library service delivery. These are
examined in the options contained within the report.

2.

Recommendations
The Environment and Neighbourhoods committee is recommended to:
● Agree to a programme of consultation with staff, customers, stakeholders and partners on
the future provision of the library service in Sutton in line with the council’s statutory
responsibility under the Public Libraries and Museums Act 1964;
● Approve the consultation methodology, and programme attached at Appendix A

3.
3.1

Background
Under the 1964 Public Libraries and Museums Act ( Section 7) the council is obliged to
provide a “comprehensive and efficient service” for all individuals who live, work or study within
the borough and who are ‘desirous’ of using the service. Sutton Council currently delivers this
duty through 9 public library service points across the borough, plus a mobile library service
and a special ‘at home’ service to those people who are unable to travel to libraries due to
age, ill health or disability.

3.2

The statutory instruction says:
“In fulfilling its duty...a library authority shall in particular have regard to the
desirability:
of securing....that facilities are available for the borrowing of or reference to, books and

2

other printed matter, and pictures, gramophone records, films and other materials
sufficient in number, range and quality to meet the general requirements and any
special requirements both of adults and children”
3.3

It will be apparent from the reference to “gramophone records and film” that the Act has been
overtaken by the Information revolution and the rise in use of electronic and social media,
which have altered how people read, create, share and find information. This change formed
the basis for Sutton’s Library Strategy, adopted by the council in January 2015.

3.4

The Council is charged with “providing”, not necessarily delivering library services and this
flexibility has given rise to an increasing number of alternative models.

3.5

The Act gives no direction as to numbers of libraries to be provided, geographical spread or
distance to travel.

3.6

There has never been an accepted definition of the phrase “comprehensive and efficient” as
noted by the judge in the Judicial Review taken against Gloucestershire and Somerset CC in
2011.

3.7

Nor does the Act define a ‘library service’: library facilities are referred to but not defined but
they are clearly not the same as library premises which are defined in Section 8(7) of the Act.

3.8

The funding for libraries is not ring-fenced; Local Authorities are responsible for deciding how
to allocate core funding to public libraries in the light of their statutory duties under the 1964
Act and local priorities. It is the responsibility of library authorities to determine how they
deliver public services in the context of local need - specifically, the needs of those who live,
work and study in the local area. This was reinforced in the Secretary of State for Culture,
Media and Sport’s recent letter to the City of Sheffield:
“what constitutes a comprehensive and efficient service is a question involving a
significant element of judgement [which is], in the first instance, for the local authority
to make. It has in-depth knowledge of local conditions and needs and has direct
democratic accountability to the local population... The Secretary of State’s view is that
decisions about local issues should ordinarily be taken by democratically elected local
representatives accountable to local voters.”

3.9

Currently, there are no English Public Library Standards such as those that have been
adopted in Wales. Between 2001 and 2008 public library authorities had to report against 26
performance measures. These covered (amongst others) opening hours, proportions of
households living a specified distance from a static library, access to internet and speed to
fulfil requested items. The standards were abolished in March 2008 when the government
brought in the National Indicator set, only one of which referred to libraries. These national
indicators were in turn abolished in 2010. Other than CIPFA benchmarking there is therefore,
no quality measurement of library provision.

3.10

Judicial challenge and intervention
The last time the Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport intervened under the
government’s powers to supervise the service was in the Wirral in 2009. The primary reason
for the breach was that the Council failed to make an assessment of local needs (or
alternatively to evidence knowledge of verifiable local needs) in respect of its Library Services.
In the absence of such an assessment it was concluded that the Council therefore could not
have reasonably met such needs in the context of its statutory duties and available resources,
nor identify a reasonable option for meeting such needs both comprehensively and efficiently.

3

3.11

As a result, Public Library Authorities seeking to make changes to their networks have
undertaken community profiling and needs analyses, based on census data. Sutton has
conducted a comprehensive needs analysis initially based on the Bolton assessment method,
which has been a successful model. Between January and April 2015, the needs assessments
have been amended and refined to reflect DCMS recommendations to other Councils, i.e.
Sheffield and Lincolnshire, to ensure we are following best practice recommendations and
guidelines for informing assessments. An explanation of the methodology and tables is
attached at Appendix B.

3.12

Judicial reviews against changes to library provision are or have been taken against Brent,
Doncaster, the Isle of Wight, Somerset and Gloucester, Shropshire and Lincolnshire among
others. The Lincolnshire judgement is significant in defining the Council’s approach to
consultation and the formulation of options in that it was claimed:
● consultation that preceded the decision was unlawful in that decisions had already been
taken before the consultation began;
● the Council failed to take due regard of its obligations under the Public Sector Equality
Duty as required by the Equality Act 2010. The Council had already identified that
disabled people, older people, young people and women (particularly mothers of young
children), were going to be adversely affected but failed to ensure that this adverse impact
was prevented.
● the Council failed to properly consider the proposal by Greenwich Leisure, a charitable
social enterprise, to take over the whole Library Service whilst largely maintaining the
library network.
● if the cuts went ahead, the library service would no longer be a comprehensive and
efficient library service, as required by the Public Libraries and Museums Act 1964.

3.13

The finding against Somerset and Gloucester was based on the councils’ failure to meet their
obligations under the public sector equality duty:

3.14 “the decisions under challenge failed to give effect to the public sector equality duties
and were not merely unlawful decisions but amounted to bad government. It is
important to the rule of law to give due respect to these issues of equality. The breach
of the equality duties is a substantive and not merely a technical or procedural defect.”
3.15

Thus it is that considerations of adverse impact, the Council’s acknowledgement of that, and
proposals to mitigate impact, are more significant than any challenge under the Act itself and
any definition or interpretation of “comprehensive and efficient”.

3.16

Intervention: under the 1964 Act the Secretary of State may intervene if he is of the opinion
that a local authority is failing to carry out its duty under the Act to deliver a “comprehensive
and efficient” library service for library users by making a remedial order following a local
inquiry, which can commence either on receipt of a complaint or of the Secretary of State’s
own motion.

3.17

In determining whether to order such an inquiry, the Secretary of State gives consideration to
a number of factors, including failure to consult properly, assessment of the impact any
decision to stop serving a particularly vulnerable group in the local community may have,
whether the council has carried out ‘significant’ research and, importantly, whether the council
has failed to explain, analyse or properly justify its proposals.

3.18

This report and its appendices seek to fully explain all the potential options for change for both
Members and the residents of the London Borough of Sutton in requesting permission to
consult.

4

4.
4.1

Context for Sutton
The Library Service in Sutton is provided through a network of 9 libraries located across the
borough and one mobile vehicle delivering to a timetable of stops. There is a full time
equivalent staff of 64.3 which works flexibly across the network.

4.2

Sutton Central Library is by far the largest and operates over four floors. It has the largest
book stock and acts as a resource and support for all other libraries. The most recent MORI
poll (2013) shows a satisfaction rate for Libraries of 89%.

4.3

The branch library network is divided into two distinct groups: those libraries which are in
stand-alone buildings and those in multi-centres.
Library in Civic
premises
Sutton Library

Libraries in Stand-alone
Buildings
Wallington Library
Worcester Park Library
Cheam Library
Circle Library
Beddington Library

Libraries in Multi- Centres
Phoenix Library
Westcroft Library
Sutton Life Centre Library

4.4

Libraries in multi-centres are staffed by library staff but the buildings are managed by another
operator. Generally the libraries in multi-centres are smaller in floor space, open longer hours
and share overheads.

4.5

The library service is extensively used across the Borough. There were almost 1.5 million
visits to libraries during 2013/14. Sutton Library attracts users from across the Borough and
from neighbouring authorities. It is open 7 days a week for 60 hours. Key performance
statistics for the network are attached at Appendix C.

4.6

Wallington Library is the second largest library and is a well established resource in the town
centre. The other stand-alone branch libraries at Cheam, Worcester Park and Circle, attract
a local population (typically around a 2 mile radius) and are open for a minimum of 35 hours
per week. Beddington is a small part time library with a low and diminishing usage and a
smaller catchment area.

4.7

The branch library network is supported by a Mobile Library and a Housebound Library
Service. It is difficult to see why an urban borough, with good transport links, should continue
to operate a mobile library service: only 4 of the 33 London boroughs continue to provide a
mobile and one of those (Enfield) is under review.

4.8

The Housebound Service delivers to 100 residents who are unable to travel from their home to
a local library due to ill health, infirmity or disability. This service has been redesigned to
operate on the Meals on Wheels model, with volunteers. This will allow expansion, in
mitigation for any users who are unable to use a static library, should the mobile be withdrawn.
The new delivery model for the service launched in September 2015.

4.9

The 2015 Library Strategy provides a framework to enable the service to focus on the core
offer, however some buildings are now outdated and the ten year old IT system is no longer fit
for purpose. Staff skills require updating to deliver agile services in line with customer and
Council expectations. Members have recognised some of this need and capital investment has
been provided to enable Sutton to join the London Libraries Consortium as a first step in the
modernisation programme. The consortium comprises 17 London boroughs, effectively

5

providing residents with one library ticket for London, five million items of stock and
opportunities for the service to achieve economies of scale not just on the Library
Management System but associated contracts. Consortium working offers staff the potential to
work collaboratively in Pan London groups, broadening their outlook and their horizons and
gaining new skills to benefit Sutton communities. New self service equipment will replace ten
year old legacy equipment and bring the service firmly into the channel shift agenda enabling
customers to fully self serve, and pay with cash or via chip and pin devices.
4.10

Further capital investment in key libraries would enable the service to redesign and
reinvigorate library spaces to meet customer expectation for flexible spaces for recreation,
study and leisure. Equipping staff with mobile working devices would free them from counters
to floor walk and engage more fully with customers and enable them to take the Library and
Council services and information out to local communities to deliver a library service truly
without walls.

5.

OPTIONS FOR CONSULTATION

5.1
Overview
5.1.1 As part of the programme to deliver £40m of savings across the council the Library, Heritage
and Arts Service has undertaken to review all areas of activity, including procurement, staffing
and the library network, the latter using objective criteria, which aims to save around £750,000
in the financial year 16/17. This is in addition to the £227,000 savings target included in the
budget for 15/16. .
5.1.2 The council’s options for consultation are:
Closure of Beddington library
Discontinuation of the Mobile Library service
Rationalisation of library opening hours
Consideration of a community library model with the bulk of the workforce comprising
volunteers who would work alongside some paid staff
Shared services with a neighbouring authority
Commissioning service from an external provider, such as those currently providing
services in Croydon and Wandsworth.
5.1.3 Each of these options is examined below.
5.1.4 A separate community profile has been produced for each library service point. Profiles
identify catchment areas for each library on the basis of Lower Super Output Areas (LSOA)
where 5% or more of the population are known to be active borrowers of the library, with the
exception of Beddington, where there were no LSOAs where that was the case. The
catchment area for Beddington Library is therefore taken to be the two LSOAs which contain
the highest numbers of active library members. All community profiles are available on the
Council’s website and in libraries during the consultation period. The profile for Beddington is
attached at Appendix D.
5.1.5 In preparation for the consultation, an assessment of need has been carried out across the
borough, and a full mapping, using data from the library management system, of current
usage, including visits, issues, IT usage as well as socio-demographic data on age, disability,
income, access to transport and availability of other libraries is included in the rankings. The
methodology for deriving these is explained at Appendix B. Each library has been ranked
from 1-9 on a range of indicators. A high rank indicates a lower level of viability for a
library on a particular indicator.

6

5.1.6 All ranks have been combined into a total to give an overall indicator of level of viability. The
total has been weighted in favour of indicators for accessibility by car/public transport and the
propensity of members to use other libraries. This methodology was devised by the Joint
Strategic Needs Analysis team at Bolton Council and its validity has been checked against
Judicial Review decisions and the recent City of Sheffield letter from the Department of
Culture, Media and Sport, cited above, which was critical of that city council’s needs analysis
methodology. In addition, the percentage of catchment population defined as ‘hard pressed’
has been included in the indicator list.
5.1.7 As part of the review the Council will look at opportunities to mitigate any cuts to the network
e.g. restoring opening hours at the central library to reopen the upper floors for public use on a
Monday, opening earlier and offering free reservations for books and other items loaned
between libraries in Sutton.
5.2
Proposed changes to the library network
5.2.1 Library service closures
5.2.2 On a range of usage figures Beddington Library is in decline: issues are down 78% over seven
years, and there are only 474 active users (defined by having borrowed an item with the last
year). The library is only 30 square metres in size, severely restricting the service we are able
to offer particularly in regard to delivering against the Library Strategy and making further
development in service is difficult. A table of usage figures and a community profile are
attached at Appendix D.
5.2.3 Beddington also scores badly on the basis of needs analysis, and in cost and efficiency. Within
the catchment area, there were 1,135 households identified in the Census 2011 (around 1% of
the total of 78,174 in the London Borough of Sutton as a whole). Home ownership is:
85% owned
5% social rented
9% privately rented.
The level of home ownership is significantly higher than the borough average of 68% and
the national average of 64%.
Only 2.35% of the catchment population was in receipt of out of work benefit.
5.2.4 The Indices of Deprivation 2010 provides a relative ranking of areas across England & Wales
according to their level of deprivation. It includes the Index of Multiple Deprivation which brings
together 37 different indicators covering specific aspects or dimensions of deprivation
including income, employment, health and disability, education, skills and training, barriers to
housing and services, living environment and crime.
5.2.5 The Beddington Library catchment area contains no LSOAs in the lowest 30% most deprived
areas.
5.2.6 The area is also well served by public transport, and 4 borough libraries can be reached in 20
minutes by bus: Sutton Central, Wallington, Phoenix and Westcroft. A map showing public
transport routes is at Appendix E. Access to a car/van is 83.7%, the second highest in the
borough.
5.2.7 The Council acknowledges that closure may cause some detriment but the results of the first
user consultation conducted between December 2014 and February 2015 show that the
Central Library is the best used in the borough and 47.5% of Beddington’s active library
members use other libraries within Sutton.

7

5.2.8 The Mobile Library stops at 43 locations within the borough during the week and carries a
stock of around 2,500 items. Sutton is one of the few remaining London boroughs to continue
to run a mobile library service. 37% of its users visit other Sutton libraries as well as using the
vehicle. This willingness to use other libraries is shown at Appendix F.
5.2.9 Given the need to make savings, high transactional costs and declining usage (32% over the
last 5 years) and in a compact urban borough with good transport links, the recommendation is
to discontinue the mobile service.
5.2.10 The Council recognises that there are customers who have limited ability to travel to other
service points and to mitigate any adverse impact on such users the existing housebound
service will be improved and expanded. The service currently delivers to 100 residents who
are unable to travel from their home to a local library due to ill health or disability.
5.2.11 The Housebound service has been redesigned and is being offered in partnership with the
Meals on Wheels service (MOW) and Sutton Old Peoples’ Welfare Committee via volunteers.
Deliveries will take place three times a week to clients in their own homes. This will allow
expansion to accommodate those vulnerable readers who are affected by the withdrawal of
the mobile. The new service launched in September 2015.
5.2.12 In addition, deposit collections will be left at care homes currently being visited by the existing
service.
5.3 Alter opening hours
5.3.1 The library service has taken cuts to opening hours in previous years (2011-2013) to achieve
budget savings. This involved opening all libraries at 9.30 a.m. instead of at 9 and each branch
library lost one hour’s late opening. As well as only having the ground floor open on a Monday,
the central library reduced its hours two days a week in the evenings, offering service on the
ground floor only. Given the popularity and importance of the central library and no access to
stock, ICT or study facilities on the upper floors, to further reduce opening hours in this way is
neither cost effective nor is it good public service.
5.3.2 In order to achieve savings of c £400k there would have to be a reduction in the region of at
least 50% across the network which would have a significant impact on library visits and
issues. In order to protect opening hours at Sutton Central as our flagship library, other
libraries would face an even higher cut. This would see, for example, Wallington’s hours
reduced from 40.5 to 24 per week and the removal of all libraries Sunday opening, apart from
at central. Arguably this is neither “comprehensive” nor “efficient” as resources are left fallow in
closed buildings and it is more difficult to achieve staff and building savings, compared to
outright closure. It is a very visible cut, poor customer service and will undoubtedly lead to falls
in usage as libraries are closed when people want to use them. Current and modelled reduced
opening hours are at Appendix G.
5.3.3 As part of the library review, opening hours will be re-examined across the network to ensure a
consistent pattern, and as far is possible given financial constraints, in line with customer
expectations.
5.4
Adopt a volunteer supported model
5.4.1 Sutton Library service has always used volunteers, but to deliver ‘added value’, not as a
substitute for duties currently done by paid staff. The scale of financial reductions across local
authorities has prompted many councils to look at volunteers actually delivering services.
More than one in three Public Library Authorities have at least one community operated library
within their area, representing 5% of English library provision (2013 figures). If a decision were

8

taken to close other library buildings within Sutton then there are different approaches to
volunteer run or supported libraries:
Independent community library, either asset or non-asset owning, with no public sector
involvement;
Co-produced library: partnerships between councils and community groups;
Community managed with some form of ongoing council support and still part of the network;
Community supported, council-led with paid staff but with significant support from volunteers;
‘Commissioned community’, fully funded by a council but delivered by a not for profit or social
enterprise company, or mutual, either existing or purposely created.
5.4.2 The Council has yet to explore the potential for any of these models but maintaining quality of
service and customer standards, access to professional staff and the importance of ensuring
the Council’s adherence to delivering an equal service, are all important considerations.
5.4.3 Indications are if we take all library assistant roles out and replace their work with volunteers
we could save c £400k, but it’s difficult to see how such extensive job substitution guarantees
quality or sustainability. We would still have a paid staff member at each library to manage the
volunteers who would be recruited to a series of job descriptions, and performance managed
and these libraries would remain within the statutory service.
5.4.4 Independent ‘community-led’ models. This has been done in Lewisham, North Yorkshire
and Bradford but if the Council abrogates responsibility and does not provide funding, staffing
or media fund support then such libraries should sit outside the statutory provision. This may
well be a model the Council would wish to explore if the decision were made to close other
libraries within the network, based on the needs analysis table and as in the model above
consideration needs to be given to quality and sustainability of service.
5.5 Shared services
5.5.1 Sharing services is increasingly being adopted across a range of council activities throughout
the country and across a wide range of services. LBS already has shared service
arrangements for legal services, IT and HR. In London, Bromley and Bexley share library
services, with one management team and head of service.
5.5.2 The potential to share library and heritage services with Kingston and Richmond was subject
to a Smarter Sutton review in July 2011, refreshed in 2013, with the aim of exploring cost
savings without sacrificing quality and achieving economies of scale in specialist and
managerial roles. Richmond’s decision to establish a Trust reduced the tri-borough proposal
(similar to that adopted in Westminster, Hammersmith and Fulham and Kensington and
Chelsea) to a two borough proposal. There would also be implementation costs which
impacted on what was already a two way split due to redundancies and other staff
compensation payments.
5.5.3 Given that all the services have taken further cuts to their budgets in the last 4 years, and in
Sutton’s case, reduced senior management roles in the financial year 15/16, then achievable
savings, calculated at 2.8% of total service budgets (2011 projections) would not be great
enough to compensate for the upheaval and workloads involved in harmonising services
across two boroughs.

9

5.5.4 Nonetheless this remains an option to revisit in order to achieve savings should that become
necessary if savings are not taken under other options.
5.6
Commissioned or outsourced library services
5.6.1 Sutton’s strategic objective is to be “a commissioning council”. Although the option to
outsource or commission services is widely adopted across a range of other council services,
for libraries and heritage this is still an under-developed market. The current picture is:
5.6.2 Carillion run Hounslow, Ealing, Harrow and Croydon
5.6.3 GLL run Wandsworth, Greenwich and have indicated an interest in Lincolnshire
5.6.4 Bromley and Bexley, who already run a shared service, is currently conducting a soft market
test
5.6.5 Lincolnshire CC is going out to tender for provision of services
5.6.6 Essex Council is coming to the end of a 5 year contract to run Slough, through a trading arm.
5.6.7 There is a potential for LBS to also ‘soft test’ the market, either singly or with a partner, as part
of the options appraisal for savings. This would allow the Council to assess the capacity of and
likely interest in and viability of an outsourced option in order to support the decision making
process.
5.6.8 The Council would invite responses from the private sector and charitable and voluntary and
not for profit organisations, either singly or in a consortium.
5.6.9 Library Trusts: the Council has previously commissioned studies looking at leisure and library
Trusts. A trust still offers NNDR, VAT and other savings but many existing flagship cultural
trusts which run libraries are running into difficulties given that income and savings targets are
provided by their sponsoring councils and they typically have no financial safety net. In
addition, they are tied into Service Level Agreements which makes taking savings more
difficult. Passing libraries over to a Trust can lead to a loss of decision making ability over key
community assets.
5.6.10 Given that the Council has entered into Trust arrangements for the provision of leisure
services, this remains an option to be considered.
6.
6.1

Impacts and Implications
Financial
There are currently savings of £368k still to be identified in 2015/16 for the Libraries and
Heritage services. This includes a savings target of £227k for 2015/16.
The service is forecasting an overspend of £239k, as at month 4 (July 2015) due to the
predicted underachievement of these savings. This will need to be addressed, along with the
2016/17 savings target of £734k, as part of the review of the Libraries service.

6.2

Legal
The Council believes that it has taken due consideration of the Public Libraries and
Museums Act 1964 duties in still providing a “comprehensive and efficient” service,
specifically in the withdrawal of the mobile library service and branch library closures. In
addition, due note has been taken of the recent letter of the DCMS to the City of Sheffield

10

emphasising that the provision of a comprehensive and efficient service is a question involving
a significant element of judgement which is, in the first instance, for the local authority to make.
6.3

Recent judicial reviews taken against Public library Authorities over closures and a shift to
community-led (volunteer) models have centred on a council’s responsibility under the
Equalities Act 2010 to have due regard to statutory equality needs. In developing detailed
community profiles and a needs analysis tool based on census data the Council believes it has
conducted a ‘sufficiently thorough information gathering exercise and then properly analysed
that information’ [R(Green) v Gloucestershire and Somerset County Council(s), 16 November
2011].

6.4

In addition, proposed mitigation in improving the Housebound service to those users who
would be adversely affected by the withdrawal of service both on the Mobile and at Beddington
Library, and the restoration of opening hours in the most heavily used library (central at
Sutton) will, combined with improved access to stock in other libraries, will counter adverse
impact.

6.5

7.

Property
Beddington Library is leased and 6 months notice is required. In addition the Council has
responsibility for dilapidations. The mobile library lease agreement is due to expire in May
2016 and consideration will have to be given early in 2016 as to whether a new vehicle is to be
leased.
Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix Letter
A
B
C
D
E
F
G

Title
Consultation methodology
Needs analysis and community profiling
Key performance statistics for Sutton Libraries
Beddington Library community profile
Public transport routes for LBS
Usage of other Sutton libraries
Modelling of opening hour reductions

Background Documents
(Insert text here having first referred to the guidance notes)
Audit Trail
Version

(Insert draft/final/final signed
which must include
Strategic Director’s
electronic signature)
Consultation with other officers
Officer
Comments Sought
Finance
Yes
Legal
Yes
Asset management
Yes
IIA/EIA
Yes

11

Date:

Comments checked by
Phil Butlin
Tracy Swan
Alison Boote

INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM
SECTION 1: AIMS AND PURPOSE
A. IS THIS A NEW POLICY OR A REVIEW OF AN EXISTING POLICY OR SERVICE?

On 15 January 2015, the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee considered
the ‘Library Strategy for Sutton 2015 to 2019’. The Library Strategy has the key aims
of:
Literacy: growing the readers of the future
Meeting the needs of an ageing population
Narrowing the digital divide
Creating a viable, sustainable and quality service within available resources.
The minutes of the meeting confirm that:
“Members considered a report on a new Library Strategy which will be the
strategic framework for the service 2015 to 2019 detailing how the Council will
meet the challenge of delivering a sustainable and viable network and still
achieve savings.”
As part of the ongoing programme to meet the Council’s funding gap of £40m by
2019, library services have been reviewed and the options being proposed to be
included in the consultation are:
Closure of Beddington Library.
Discontinuation of the mobile library
Rationalisation of library opening hours
Consideration of replacing some staff with volunteers
Shared services with a neighbouring authority
Commissioning service from an external provider, such as those currently
providing services in Croydon and Wandsworth.
The proposals other than those to close Beddington Library and discontinue the
mobile library service are referred to in this document as the ‘general proposals’.

1
VERSION JUNE 2014

B. WHAT ARE THE AIMS AND PURPOSE OF THIS PROPOSAL?

Within the context of the Library Strategy and as part of the programme to deliver
£40m of savings across the council, the Library, Heritage and Arts Service has
undertaken to review all areas of activity, including procurement, staffing and the
library network. The aim is to save around £750,000 in the financial year 16/17. This
is in addition to the £227,000 already identified for 15/16, which has been taken from
senior staff changes, a reduction in the materials fund and changes to internal
working practices.
The closure of Beddington Library would contribute £50,000 towards those savings
and the discontinuation of the Mobile Library would contribute £166,000. The savings
generated by the other options would depend on the detail of what is implemented.

C. WHICH OF THE GEOGRAPHIC AREAS DOES THIS PROPOSAL AFFECT?
(Insert any specific wards or state all borough)

With the exception of the closure of Beddington Library, the other options would have
an impact on all of the borough.
Beddington library has a very limited catchment area from where users travel to use
the existing facilities. As a result, the proposals will mainly affect the Lower Super
Output Areas (LSOAs) immediately adjacent to the library.
A map showing the catchment area is included in the profile for Beddington Library
which is at Appendix D of the report.

2
VERSION JUNE 2014

SECTION 2: EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY
A. WHICH STAKEHOLDER GROUP OR GROUPS DOES THIS PROPOSAL AFFECT? (Broad groups - e.g.

Staff at LBS, residents, third and voluntary sector)

The general proposals will affect those residents that use Sutton’s library service and staff.
At Annex A is a list of the groups who use Sutton Libraries.
The proposal to discontinue the Mobile Library and close Beddington Library will affect
those residents that use it: 683 active library users who were registered with the Mobile
Library and 474 who were registered at Beddington Library were recorded on the Library
Management System. The staff currently timetabled to work at Beddington Library and with
the mobile library will also be affected.

B. WHOSE NEEDS IS THE PROPOSAL DESIGNED TO MEET?

(Specific groups of people e.g. those who directly use the service)

The proposal would generate savings while ensuring that Sutton continues to have a
comprehensive and efficient library service which is sustainable, affordable and viable.

C. WHAT EVIDENCE HAS BEEN COLLECTED TO INFORM THIS PROPOSAL?

As background to the recommendations on the future of the library service, community
profiles have been produced for each of Sutton’s libraries. The profiles for most libraries
look at a catchment area comprising Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) where 5% or more
of the residents are known to be active library users. In the case of Beddington Library,
however, no LSOAs met that criterion, so the two LSOAs with the highest number of active
library users registered at Beddington were taken.
The profiles show a variety of key demographic, transport and library user data, taken from
3
VERSION JUNE 2014

sources such as the 2011 Census and the Department of Work and Pensions.
Data from the Library Information System has been used to supplement the data collected
for the profiles. In addition, a Library User Survey was carried out in early 2015 to gather
information about which libraries were being used, the demographics of the library users,
and the services being used.
Other information has been taken from sources such as the Census 2011 and Transport for
London.

D. WHAT

EQUALITY-RELATED

INFORMATION,

FOR

EXAMPLE

THROUGH

CONSULTATION

WITH

STAKEHOLDERS, HAS BEEN GATHERED ON THIS PROPOSAL?

(Indicate the type of information gathered and ensure you address ethnicity, disability, gender,
age, religion and sexual orientation. You can also include people with caring responsibilities.
Attach a summary or refer to where the evidence is held.)

General Proposals (specific information on Beddington and the Mobile Library are
given later in this section)
As noted above, profiles were prepared for each of the Libraries in Sutton and these have
been published on the Council’s website1.
The Library Management System has records of around 48,000 current library users. Of
those records, 47,200 (98%) contain information about the user’s gender. 60% of the library
users are female and 40% male. That proportion is broadly similar across all of Sutton’s
libraries, with the figure for the Mobile Library being the highest at 66%.
The equality-related information from the Library User Survey - which had around 1,800
responses - is shown below:
Age and gender
The graph below shows a breakdown of the age and gender of the respondents who said
that they had used a library in the last year.
Overall, almost twice as many of the respondents were female than male. There was an
even bigger gap between the genders in the younger age groups. For example, three
quarters of respondents in the 25-34 and 35-44 age groups were female.
1

https://www.sutton.gov.uk/downloads/download/613/facts_and_figures_about_our_libraries

4
VERSION JUNE 2014

The above pattern is quite different to that of the population as a whole. The graphs below
contrast the age and gender breakdown of the library users with that of the general
population recorded in the Census 2011.
As noted above, the proportion of women library users was much higher than the general
population. The proportion of older people was also higher than the general population,
with the 15-24 age group being particularly under-represented. This is more likely to be
because that group was less inclined to complete the questionnaire than because of a lack
of library users of that age.

5
VERSION JUNE 2014

Ethnicity
80% of library users described themselves as ‘white or white British’, with 4% not answering
the question.

6
VERSION JUNE 2014

Of those who answered the question, 84% described themselves as White. This compares
to 80.8% of the population of Sutton aged 16+ in the Census 2011.
The ethnic breakdown from the Census varies significantly with age: older populations in
Sutton are more likely to be White than the younger ones. The graph below therefore
compares the % of library users in each age group describing themselves as White with the
overall population in that age group from the Census 2011. For the younger age groups the
proportions of White people were broadly in line with the population of Sutton. The main
variations were in the 55-64 and 65-74 age groups where the library users were more
predominantly White than the general population. (The number of survey respondents in
16-24 age group was too small to produce a reliable comparison.)

7
VERSION JUNE 2014

Tenure
In terms of tenure, over three quarters of the respondents said that they were either buying
a house on a mortgage (35%) or owned their house outright (41%). The proportion of
‘owned outright’ is higher than that recorded in the Census 2011 where 29% of households
were owned outright. This, however, is likely to be related to the age profile of the
respondents to the survey: as there was a higher proportion of older people in the survey
than in the general population, we would expect higher levels of home ownership.

8
VERSION JUNE 2014

Household structure
Around a third of the respondents said that they were part of a couple with dependent
children. Lone parents with dependent children made up 4% of the total.

9
VERSION JUNE 2014

Employment
47% of library users were in employment (31% full time) and another 6% were selfemployed. 30% of the respondents were retired and 1% of the library users were registered
unemployed. Given the age breakdown of the respondents, it is perhaps unsurprising that
relatively few people described themselves as students. It may be that the low response
rate for that group is related to the time of year when the survey was carried out.
Which of the following best applies to
you?
Working – full time (30+ hrs/wk)
Working - part time (8-29 hrs/wk)
Working – (under 8 hrs/wk)
Self-employed
Housewife/ husband
Retired
Registered unemployed
Unemployed but not registered
Permanently sick/ disabled
On a training scheme

Number of
respondents
526
237
24
96
100
529
15
29
21
1

%
31%
14%
1%
6%
6%
31%
1%
2%
1%
0%

10
VERSION JUNE 2014

Voluntary work
Student
Full-time carer
Other
Not Answered
Grand Total

38
28
15
23
32
1714

2%
2%
1%
1%
2%
100%

Disability
The survey included a question on disability that was similar to one asked in the Census
2011: “Are your day-to-day activities limited because of a health problem or disability which
has lasted or is expected to last at least 12 months?”.
In the Census, there were three possible answers: ‘limited a lot’, ‘limited a little’, or ‘not
limited’. The Library survey simply asked people to respond ‘yes’ or ‘no’. The Census also
clarified that people were to include problems related to old age when answering the
question.
Overall, 10.3% of the library users (who answered the question) said that their day to day
activities were limited. In the Census 2011, 16.4% of people aged 16+ said that their
activities were limited a little or a lot, and 7.0% said that their activities were limited a lot.
There were significant differences when disability was considered for different age groups.
The graph below shows the results for those aged under 65 and those aged 65+. For the
latter group, the proportion of library users with activities limited was lower than for the
Census 2011, even if the comparison was restricted to those people who said that their dayto-day activities were ‘limited a lot’. This may be because, with the exception of the mobile
library which only accounted for a small proportion of the library users, people have to travel
to get to a library and that may deter some people with a disability from using the service.
Of the 81 people whose main library was the mobile library, 31 (38%) said that their day-today activities were limited.

11
VERSION JUNE 2014

Caring responsibilities
The question on caring responsibilities in the survey asked: “Caring responsibilities – A
carer is someone who spends some of their time providing unpaid support to a family
member, partner or friend who is frail, disabled or has mental health or substance misuse
problems. Do you regularly provide unpaid care for someone?”.
14% of library users said that they provided regular unpaid care. In the Census 2011, 10%
of people said that they “looked after, or gave any help or support to family members,
friends, neighbours and others because of either: long-term physical or mental illhealth/disability or problems related to old age”. The higher proportion of library users with
caring responsibilities may be linked to the smaller proportion with disabilities.

Beddington Library
Ethnicity:
The proportion of residents from the Beddington Library Catchment Area who described
themselves as “White” in the 2011 Census was 85.3%, higher than the average for the
borough as a whole of 79%. The largest non-white ethnicity in the catchment area was
“Asian/Asian British” with 6.8%. That category made up 12% of Sutton as a whole.
In the Library User Survey, 66 respondents said that they used Beddington either as their
main library or one of the ones they used in addition to their main library. Of the 64 people
12
VERSION JUNE 2014

who answered the question on ethnicity, 53 (83%) selected the “White or White British”
option, which is broadly in line with the Catchment Area population. 7 of the respondents
said that they were “Asian or Asian British”, 3 were “Black or Black British” and one was
from a mixed background.
Disability:
Benefit claimant data shows that in February 2014:
110 people were claiming Disability Living Allowance within the catchment area
(5.8% of the working age population)
50 people aged 65+ were claiming Attendance Allowance (10.8% of the population
over 65)
The equivalent figures for Sutton as a whole were 5.7% and 13.2% respectively
The Census 2011 asked people whether their day-to-day activities were limited because of
a long-term disability or illness.
199 people (6.9%) in the Beddington Library catchment area said that their
activities were limited ‘a lot’
222 (7.7%) said that their activities were limited ‘a little’
The equivalent figures for Sutton as a whole were 6.4% and 7.9% respectively.
From the Library User Survey, of the 66 people who use Beddington Library 6% said that
they had a disability, compared to 10% of the total respondents to the survey. The
Beddington respondents therefore had slightly lower levels of reported disability than the
population as a whole.
Gender:
At the time of the 2011 Census, 49% of the borough was male and 51% female. The
proportions in the Beddington Library Catchment Area were the same.
Library users are more likely to be female that the general population. In total, there are
around 48,000 users registered with Sutton’s libraries. Of those 60% are female. The
figures for the users registered with Beddington Library are similar: there is a 41%/59% split
between males and females.
Two thirds of all the respondents to the Library User Survey were female. The figure for the
66 people who use Beddington Library was even higher at 80%.

13
VERSION JUNE 2014

Age:
The table below shows the age profile of the Beddington Library Catchment Area compared
to that of Sutton as a whole.
Age Group
0-15 yrs

Beddington Library
catchment area
545

% of catchment
area
18.8%

LB Sutton
average %
20.0%

16-24 yrs

315

10.9%

10.3%

25-49 yrs

956

33.1%

38.2%

50-64 yrs

615

21.3%

17.2%

65+

461

15.9%

14.3%

Totals

2,892

The respondents to the Library User Survey had a higher age profile that the general
population. The table below compares the age profile for the survey with that from the
Census 2011.

Age Group
16-24
25-34
35-44
45-54
55-59
60-64
65-74
75+
Total

Census
2011

All survey
respondents

Beddington
Survey
respondents

13%
18%
20%
18%
7%
7%
9%
9%
100%

1%
9%
22%
18%
10%
11%
20%
8%
100%

5%
8%
18%
22%
15%
14%
14%
5%
100%

Religion:
In the Census 2011, 61% of the residents of the Beddington Library Catchment Area
reported that they were Christian; 19% had no religion; 6% were Hindu, 5% were of another
religion and 8% did not answer. These percentages are broadly in line with those of the
14
VERSION JUNE 2014

borough as a whole.
Sexual Orientation:
There are no data available on this characteristic for the catchment area.
Caring responsibilities:
The table below shows the people from the Census 2011 who said that they were providing
unpaid care for someone because of old age or disability.

1 to 19 hours of unpaid care
20 to 49 hours of unpaid care
50+ hours of unpaid care
Total

Number in
catchment
area
195
37
63
295

% of
catchment
area
6.7%
1.3%
2.2%
10.2%

% for
Borough
6.5%
1.2%
1.9%
9.6%

Overall, 14% of respondents to the Library User Survey said that they provided regular
unpaid care to a family member, or friend who is frail, disabled or has mental health or
substance misuse problems. The figure was similar (15%) for users of Beddington Library.
While the question in the survey was not directly equivalent to that in the Census 2011, it
appears that library users are slightly more likely to be carers than the general population.
In the Census 2011, the household composition of the Beddington Library Catchment Area
showed that 24% of households contained couples (married, civil partnership or cohabiting)
with dependent children and a further 5% were made up of lone parents with dependent
children. Those were broadly in line with the Borough as a whole.
Socio-economic factors:
Neither of the LSOAs in the Beddington Catchment Area are among the 30% most deprived
nationally, according to the Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 2010 scores. Of the 121
LSOAs in Sutton, they are ranked 47th and 97th respectively where 1 is the most deprived in
the Borough.
Latest benefit claimant statistics indicate that the number of people claiming out of work
benefits in the area is slightly lower than the borough average.

15
VERSION JUNE 2014

83.7% of households in the Beddington Library Catchment Area have access to one or
more cars or vans according to the Census 2011, compared to 76.6% of households in the
borough as a whole.
Within the catchment area, there were 1,135 households identified in the Census 2011. Of
these:
85% were owned
5% social rented
9% privately rented
The level of home ownership is significantly higher than the borough average of 68%.
The figures for tenure from the Library User Survey produced very similar results for the
users of Beddington Library: 86% of homes were owned (either outright (44.4%) or with a
mortgage (41.3%)); 5% were rented from the Council, Sutton Housing Partnership or a
housing association, and 9% were privately rented or ‘other’.
Mobile Library
Age:
From the Library User Survey, 131 people said that they used the Mobile Library either as
their main library or as one of the other ones they used in addition to their main one.
The table below shows the age groups of the Mobile Library users compared to the answers
from all of the survey respondents.
Generally, the library users who responded to the Library User Survey had a higher age
profile than the population of Sutton (as shown in the 2011 Census). The users of the
Mobile Library had a higher age profile still: for example, 24% of Mobile Library users were
aged 75+ compared to 9% of the 16+ population of Sutton in the Census. The Mobile
Library users aged 75+ all used it as their main library rather than as a subsidiary one.

What is your
age group?

Is the Mobile Library
your main library
Yes/No

Grand
Total

%

All
respond
ents to

Census
2011

16
VERSION JUNE 2014

survey
Yes
16-24
25-34
35-44
45-54
55-59
60-64
65-74
75+
Not Answered
Grand Total

5
11
9
4
4
21
31
2
87

No

%

1
4
18
9
2
4
5

1
9
29
18
6
8
26
31
3
131

1
44

1%
7%
22%
14%
5%
6%
20%
24%
2%
100%

1%
9%
21%
18%
9%
11%
20%
9%
2%
100%

13%
18%
20%
18%
7%
7%
9%
9%
100%

Ethnicity:
86% of the Mobile Library users from the Library User Survey who answered the question
on ethnicity said that they were “White or White British”. Although that is higher than the
overall proportion for Sutton recorded in the Census 2011, it is not significantly so
particularly given the older age profile of the library users (older age groups are more
predominantly “White” than younger ones in Sutton).
Ethnicity

Number of
respondents

Percentage

% for whole
borough
(Census
2011)

White or White British
Asian or Asian British
Black or Black British
Mixed background
Other ethnic group

108
12
3
1
2

86%
10%
2%
1%
2%

79%
12%
5%
4%
1%

Grand Total

126

100%

100%

Disability:

17
VERSION JUNE 2014

The Library User Survey asked people to say whether their day-to-day activities were
limited because of a health problem or disability which has lasted or is expected to last at
least 12 months. 124 (out of 131) of the Mobile Library users answered the question and
27% of them said that they did have a disability. This compares to 10% of all respondents
to the Library User Survey. Also, in the Census 2011, 8% of Sutton’s population said that
their day-to-day activities were limited “a little” and a further 6% said that they were limited
“a lot”.
The Mobile Library users are therefore more likely to have a long term health condition or
disability than other library users or the general population. However, as discussed above,
they have an older age profile than other populations, so we would have expected that to be
the case to some extent.
Gender:
At the time of the 2011 Census, 49% of the borough was male and 51% female. Library
users are more likely to be female that the general population. In total, there are around
48,000 users registered with Sutton’s libraries and recorded on the Library Management
System. Of those 60% are female. The figure for the Mobile Library was 66%.
Two thirds of all the respondents to the Library User Survey were female. The figure for the
users of the Mobile Library was even higher at 79%.
Religion and Sexual Orientation:
There are no data available on these characteristics for users of the Mobile Library.
Caring responsibilities:
Overall, 14% of respondents to the Library User Survey said that they provided regular
unpaid care to a family member or friend who is frail, disabled or has mental health or
substance misuse problems. The figure was the same for users of the Mobile Library.
A similar question was asked in the Census 2011. 10% of the population of Sutton said that
they provided some unpaid care for someone because of old age or disability. While the
question in the Library User Survey was not directly equivalent to that in the Census 2011, it
appears that library users are slightly more likely to be carers than the general population.
In terms of household composition, from the Library User Survey, nearly a third of Mobile
Library users said that they were pensioners, another 39% said that they were part of a
couple with dependent children and 4% were lone parents with dependent children. The
18
VERSION JUNE 2014

Census 2011 recorded that 29% of households had dependent children.
Socio-economic factors:
The questions on ‘tenure’ from the Library User Survey produced the results in the table
below. The level of home ownership (owned or owned with a mortgage) is significantly
higher than the borough average of 68% from the Census 2011.
Which of these best describes the ownership
of your home?

Number
of
responder
s

Percenta
ge

Owned outright (including leasehold)

61

50%

Buying on a mortgage
Rented from council/ Sutton Housing
Partnership

39

32%

5

4%

Rented from housing association

7

6%

Rented from private landlord

4

3%

Other

5

4%

121

100%

Grand Total

E. WHAT WILL BE DONE TO PROMOTE EQUALITY OF OPPORTUNITY AS PART OF THIS PROPOSAL?

General Proposals
The proposals around replacing staff with volunteers; sharing services with neighbouring
boroughs; and commissioning services through an external provider are unlikely to have a
disproportionate impact on any particular group of library users.
Changing the library opening hours will have an impact on those people who are unable to
use their closest library at a particular time and will need to travel to another library. This
may affect, in particular, older people, people with a disability and people with dependent
children.
In mitigation, we know that at present a large proportion of library users also make use of
other libraries. The figures for cross library usage among all current library users are at
19
VERSION JUNE 2014

Annex F of the report.
From the Library User Survey we know that around half of the people whose main library
was not Sutton Central said that it was one of the other libraries they used. The graph
below shows the proportion of respondents using Sutton Central in addition to their main
one.

From the Library profiles, Sutton Central Library is reachable within 20 minutes by public
transport from all of the other libraries in Sutton apart from Library@Phoenix Centre.
In addition, the Housebound service is being redesigned and will be offered in partnership
with the Meals on Wheels Service (MOW) and Sutton Old People’s Welfare Committee via
volunteers. Through this service, deliveries will take place three times a week to clients in
their own homes.

Beddington Library
The proposal to close Beddington Library would have a negative impact on the residents
20
VERSION JUNE 2014

who use that library. The proposals will, however, continue to ensure that across the
Borough there remains a comprehensive library service and that current users of
Beddington Library will continue to be able to access those services.
General mitigating factors
The area around Beddington Library is close to Croydon Road, a key transport route
between Sutton and Croydon. Buses 463, X26, 410, 407, 455 stop along that road or
nearby. This means that 4 other libraries in the Borough can be reached by bus within 20
minutes (Sutton Central, Wallington, Library@Phoenix, and Library@Westcroft).
Three other Sutton libraries (Wallington, Library@Phoenix, and Library@Westcroft) are
within a ten minute drive of Beddington Library. There is evidence that there is high car
ownership in the Bedding Library Catchment Area: from the Census 2011, 83.7% of
households in the Beddington Library Catchment Area have access to one or more cars or
vans, compared to 76.6% of households in the borough as a whole.
In addition to the other libraries in Sutton, Croydon Central Library is less than 2 miles away
from Beddington Library.
We also know from the Library Management System that nearly half of the 474 current
users who were registered at Beddington Library already use other libraries in the Borough,
particularly Wallington, Library@Phoenix, and Library@Westcroft.
Mitigating factors for specific groups
Ethnicity and Religion: The residents of the Beddington Library Catchment Area are
predominantly white, and more so than the Borough as a whole. The largest BME group is
“Asian/Asian British” which make up around 7% of the Catchment Area. There is no
evidence to suggest that the closure of Beddington Library would have a disproportionate
effect on any particular ethnic group. Given the limited size and resources currently
available at Beddington Library, readers requiring books in languages other than English
would have to access or order them from other libraries in the borough at present.
Disability: In general, there is no evidence that residents in the Beddington Library
Catchment Area have greater health/disability issues than the average for the borough. The
4 libraries that can be reached by bus within 20 minutes all have good disability access
(including disabled toilets – there are currently no public toilets available at Beddington
Library). In addition, the Housebound service is being redesigned and will be offered in
partnership with the Meals on Wheels Service (MOW) and Sutton Old People’s Welfare
Committee via volunteers. Through this service, deliveries will take place three times a
21
VERSION JUNE 2014

week to clients in their own homes.
Gender: Our data suggest that women are more likely to make use of library services than
men. This is true of all of the libraries in Sutton as well as Beddington Library in particular.
Any changes to library provision are therefore always likely to have a greater impact on
women.
Age: The age profile of the Beddington Library Catchment Area is similar to that of the
borough as a whole. It is not anticipated, therefore, that the closure of Beddington Library
would have a disproportionate impact on the basis of age when compared to Sutton
population as a whole. The Library User Survey suggests, however, that adult library users
tend to have an older age profile than the general population. We also know that many of
the library services are used extensively by children and young people. But, as discussed
above, there are other libraries readily accessible for older people and we will be ensuring
that there is a Housebound Service. There are no proposals to change the library provision
in schools and activities and events for children will continue to be provided elsewhere.
Sexual orientation: It is not anticipated that the closure of Beddington Library would have
an adverse impact on the grounds of sexuality.
Caring responsibilities: The proportion of people in the Beddington Library Catchment Area
who are caring for someone because of old age or disability are similar to those for the
Sutton. The household composition is also broadly comparable. Given the general
mitigating factors described above, it is not anticipated that there will be an adverse effect
on any particular group with caring responsibilities.
Socio- economic factors: In general, the Beddington Library Catchment Area is not a
deprived area compared nationally or to the rest of Sutton. However, there will still be
economically disadvantaged people in the area who could be impacted by the proposal to
close the library. Whilst there would be additional costs for people to travel to alternative
libraries, the public transport links are good.

Mobile Library
The Mobile Library currently stops at 43 locations within the borough during the week and
carries a stock of around 2,500 items. Sutton is one of the few remaining London boroughs
to continue to run a mobile library service.

The proposal to discontinue the Mobile Library service would have a negative impact on the
22
VERSION JUNE 2014

residents who use it. The proposals will, however, continue to ensure that across the
Borough there remains a comprehensive library service and that current users of the Mobile
Library will continue to be able to access services.
General mitigating factors
The Council recognises that there are customers who have limited ability to travel to other
service points and to mitigate any adverse impact on such users, the existing housebound
service will be improved and expanded. The service currently delivers to 100 residents who
are unable to travel from their home to a local library due to ill health or disability.
The Housebound service is being redesigned and will be offered in partnership with the
Meals on Wheels service (MOW) and Sutton Old Peoples’ Welfare Committee via
volunteers. Deliveries will take place three times a week to clients in their own homes. This
will allow expansion to accommodate those vulnerable readers who are affected by the
withdrawal of the Mobile Library and the new service will launch in September 2015.
In addition, deposit collections will be left at care homes currently being visited by the
existing service.
We know from the Library Management System that 37% of the 683 current users who were
registered at the Mobile Library already use other libraries in the Borough, particularly
Sutton Central, Wallington, and Library@Westcroft.
Mitigating factors for specific groups
Age: From the Library User Survey, a larger proportion of users of the Mobile Library are in
the older age groups than the average for all library users. The proposal to discontinue the
service will therefore have an impact on that group. In mitigation, as described above, the
Housebound Service is being redesigned.
Ethnicity: The users of the Mobile Library are predominantly White, and more so than the
population of the Borough as a whole. The largest BME group is “Asian or Asian British”,
who make up 10% of the Mobile Library users (compared to 12% of the overall population of
Sutton). There is, therefore, no evidence to suggest that the proposal will have a
disproportionate effect on the members of any ethnic group.
Disability: The users of the Mobile Library are more likely to have a long-term health
condition or disability than the general population, and that group are likely to be impacted
by the proposal to discontinue the service. But, as above, the redesign of the Housebound
service will ensure that the impact is mitigated.
23
VERSION JUNE 2014

Gender: Our data suggest that women are more likely to make use of library services than
men. This is true of all of the libraries in Sutton as well as the Mobile Library service in
particular. Any changes to library provision are therefore always likely to have a greater
impact on women.
Sexual orientation and religion: It is not anticipated that the discontinuation of the Mobile
Library service would have an adverse impact on the grounds of sexuality or religion.
Caring responsibilities: According to the Library User Survey, users of the Mobile Library
service have the same propensity to provide unpaid care for a friend or relative as other
library users. The household composition of Mobile Library users indicates that they are
more likely to have dependent children than the general population. However, given the
general mitigating factors mentioned above, and the fact that events and activities for
children will continue to be provided at other libraries, we do not anticipate that there will be
an adverse effect on any particular group with caring responsibilities.
Socio-economic factors: We have limited information about the socio-economic factors
affecting the users of the Mobile library service. They are, however, more likely to be retired
than the general population and own their own home. Sutton as a whole has some areas of
relative deprivation compared to the Country as a whole (17 of the 121 LSOAs in Sutton are
in the 30% most deprived as measured by the Index of Multiple Deprivation 2010) but there
are many areas which have very low levels of deprivation. In addition, 76.6% of households
in Sutton have access to a car or van (Census 2011) and this is higher for example than
neighbouring boroughs of Croydon (66.5%) and Merton (67.4%). We do not anticipate,
therefore, that the proposal will have an adverse impact on people from different socioeconomic groups.
Further analysis of the equalities impact of the proposal will be carried out following the
consultation exercise in the light of responses and comments from particular groups.

24
VERSION JUNE 2014

SECTION 3: HEALTH AND WELL BEING
Please note: Data from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment can be used to fill in this
section of the form, which can be accessed here: http://www.suttonjsna.org.uk/

A. IN WHAT WAY COULD THIS PROPOSAL POSITIVELY OR NEGATIVELY IMPACT ON THE PHYSICAL
AND/OR MENTAL WELLBEING OF RESIDENTS? IF THERE IS A NEGATIVE IMPACT WHAT ACTION
WILL BE TAKEN TO MITIGATE THIS? WHAT EVIDENCE HAS BEEN OR WILL BE COLLECTED?

It is not anticipated that the proposals would have an impact on the health of
residents in general.

B. IN WHAT WAY COULD THIS PROPOSAL HAVE A POSITIVE OR NEGATIVE IMPACT ON AN
INDIVIDUAL’S OPPORTUNITY TO IMPROVE THEIR OWN HEALTH AND WELLBEING? IF THERE IS A
NEGATIVE IMPACT WHAT ACTION WILL BE TAKEN TO MITIGATE THIS? WHAT EVIDENCE HAS OR
WILL BE COLLECTED?

There is potential that some individuals who use Beddington Library or the Mobile
Library service may become socially isolated if those services were to be
discontinued. In mitigation, alternative provision is readily accessible by car or public
transport from Beddington Library and the Housebound Service will ensure that a
service is redesigned to ensure that a service is provided to people who are unable to
leave their home. Increasingly the service is being delivered electronically, including
the availability of E Books.

C. IN

WHAT

WAY

COULD

THIS

PROPOSAL

POSITIVELY

OR

NEGATIVELY

IMPACT

DISPROPORTIONALLY ON THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING OF ONE OR MORE DIFFERENT
COMMUNITIES? IF THERE IS A NEGATIVE IMPACT WHAT ACTION WILL BE TAKEN TO MITIGATE
THIS?

(For example, improve the lives and health of a vulnerable group such as people with
learning disabilities, but impact negatively on a different vulnerable group)

The proposal will not impact disproportionately on any particular group.

25
VERSION JUNE 2014

SECTION 4: LOCAL ECONOMY
IS THIS SECTION RELEVANT TO YOUR PROPOSAL? (CIRCLE)

YES

NO

A. WILL THIS PROPOSAL AFFECT THE LOCAL JOB MARKET, LOCAL BUSINESS OR LOCAL INWARD
INVESTMENT TO THE BOROUGH?

B. DOES THIS PROPOSAL IMPACT UPON EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES FOR RESIDENTS IN
SUTTON?

C. DOES THIS PROPOSAL PROVIDE OPPORTUNITIES FOR THE THIRD SECTOR ORGANISATIONS
AND OR LOCAL BUSINESSES IN SUTTON?

26
VERSION JUNE 2014

SECTION 5: SUSTAINABILITY
IS THIS SECTION RELEVANT TO YOUR PROPOSAL? (CIRCLE)

YES

NO

A. IS THIS PROPOSAL SUSTAINABLE MEDIUM OR LONG TERM FOR IMPROVING SERVICES IN
SUTTON?

Sustainability of services is going to be increasingly difficult given the need to save
revenue of £40m by 2019. The CSR is also more likely to impose more savings on
local authorities than not. Given there is no legal requirement to provide public library
service points to a geographical or area formula, the Council seeks to design a new
model which is economically viable over the medium and potentially longer term.
We cannot look to improve services but we aim to sustain the best of what we can in
the current fiscal conditions.

B. IS THIS PROPOSAL A COST – EFFECTIVE USE OF RESOURCES?
Given the points made above, yes. The service has to contribute to the overall need
to achieve efficiencies. In particular, the proposals to discontinue the mobile library
and close Beddington Library address areas where costs per issue/visit are high
compared to other Libraries.

C. IF APPLICABLE; DOES THIS PROPOSAL HAVE ANY IMPACT ON THE ENVIRONMENT AND ONE
PLANET LIVING PRINCIPLES IN SUTTON?
(For example, does it impact upon reducing waste, encourage the use of carbon neutral
modes of transport conserve the environment or encourage the efficient use of water?
Please see guidance for further details if this is relevant to your policy or review).

N/A

27
VERSION JUNE 2014

SECTION 6: ACTIONS AND PUBLICATION
A. PLEASE RATE THE OVERALL IMPACT IDENTIFIED THROUGH THIS ASSESSMENT WITH THE LEVEL
OF ACTION THAT NEEDS TO BE TAKEN (DELETE AS APPROPRIATE):

1. No major change required (when the assessment has not identified any potential
for discrimination or adverse impact and all opportunities to advance equality have
been taken.)
B. WHAT ACTIONS ARE GOING TO BE TAKEN AS A RESULT OF THIS IIA TO ADDRESS NEGATIVE
IMPACTS OR PREVIOUSLY MET UNIDENTIFIED NEEDS?

We anticipate that the proposals as they stand will continue to ensure that there is a
comprehensive and efficient library service in Sutton and that no groups will be
disproportionately disadvantaged as a result.
The Council recognises there will be adverse impact, but in its proposed mitigation
actions, for example improvements to the Housebound Service, the Council is striving
to limit negative impact.
The IIA will, however, be revisited following the detailed consultation on the proposal
and will be updated to record any additional impacts identified.

C. WHAT DATA MONITORING OR EVALUATION ACTIVITY HAS BEEN PUT INTO PLACE TO MONITOR
THE IMPACT OF THIS PROPOSAL?

Following the consultation on the proposal, if it is decided to proceed with the closure,
we will ensure that data and statistics on library use continue to be collected and
analysed.

D. SIGN- OFF

(Your completed IIA must be signed off by a Head of Service)

28
VERSION JUNE 2014

Annex A: Stakeholder groups
Library Name

Stakeholder/Group Name
Cheam Reading Group
Children's Centre
Prince of Wales Reading Group
[New] Friends of Cheam Library
Safer Neighbourhood Team
Bridge Club
Drama Buds
Yoga

Cheam

Third Age Counselling
ITC Course volunteer
Cheam Charter Fair
Cheam Station Book Scheme
Work Experience Manager
Whitehall
Cheam Traders Association
Storytime for 0-3 year olds
Job Club
Lunch Club
Memory bank

Circle Library
Baby Stay and Play
Wii Zumba

29
VERSION JUNE 2014

Shelter
Adult literacy
NHS livewell
Friends of Circle library
Circle Reading Group
After school club
Tom Brake MP
Scrabble club
Family History group
Crafty crafts
Story time
Children's craft/gardening club
Circle Residents
MENCAP
Community Police
Green Wrythe Autistic unit
St Helier Festival committee
Love where you live group
Friends of Sutton Life Centre
Spellbound Book Group
Crafty Kids Club
Library @ Life Centre

SCILL
Job Club
Book Buddies age 9-11

30
VERSION JUNE 2014

Book Buddies age 7-9 years
Teenage Group
Rumours Reading Group
FROLIC Friends Club
Snuggle Time
Rhyme Time
Library @ Westcroft

Carshalton Reading Group
Primo Music
Ancestry Online
Pre School Parents Club
Sutton Ecology Centre
Still Scouting Book Group
Rhyme Time
Story time
Amy Johnson Children's Centre
Phoenix Reading Group
Friends of Phoenix Library
Ancestry Group

Library @ Phoenix
English 11+
Simplified Education

Social work Surgery
Community Activity in Roundshaw group
Job Club

31
VERSION JUNE 2014

Police - Safer Neighbourhood Team
Youth Zone
VIP Coffee Morning
Chess Club
Knit & Natter
Friends Group
Sutton Safer Transport
Paul Burstow MP
Job Club
Jumpstart
NHS Self Confidence Workshops
Arts Network Sutton (ANS)
Age UK Sutton
Sutton Library

Sutton Alzheimers Society
Cards for Good Causes
Carshalton High School for Girls
Sutton Fibromyalgia & Chronic Pain Club
The Royal British Legion Carshalton & Wallington
Sutton Vision
St Philomena's Catholic High School for Girls
SCOLA
Wood and Oil Group
Volunteer Centre Sutton
Carshalton College

32
VERSION JUNE 2014

Prafula Shah - African Jewellery
Corporate Communications Team
Sutton Black History Group
Cityread/Stellar Libraries
Japanese community group
SCOLA
Waterstones
Alternatives Reading Group
Sutton Evening Reading Group
Book Circle
Daisy book group
Hot reads
Literary ladies
Mint
Last Tuesday
Last Thursday
Ruby Tuesday
U3A
Friends of Wallington Library and Gardens
Craft Club
Scrabble Club
Walllington Library

Poetry Circle
SCILL
Gramaphone Society

33
VERSION JUNE 2014

SCOLA
Carshalton, Beddington and Wallington Music Soc
Tuesday Evening Reading Group
Wednesday Morning Reading Group
Carpenters Solicitors (Free advice sessions)
Tax Advice (Free Advice Sessions)
Ascent Fostering Agency
NHS Recovery College
Silverdaze Jewellery
Silver Petals Jewellery
The 'U'
Orchard Hill College
Friends of Worcester Park Library
Topaz Reading Group
Daisy - Friends of WPK Reading Group
Worcester Park Morning Reading Group
Worcester Park Evening Reading Group
Gingers Music Fun
Worcester Park Library

Pilates
Scrabble Club
Green Oak Music and Rhyme
Twinkle Toes Baby Massage
Open University
Homework Club

34
VERSION JUNE 2014

Japenese Speaking classes
Knit and natter
Bingo Club
Cinema Club
Book Buddies
Police - Safer Neighbourhood Team
Police - Safer Transport Team
Coder Jojo - Bill Cook's Raspberry Pie Group
Craft Club
Councillors Surgeries - Saturday Mornings
Cheam Common Junior School
Alzheimer's Society
Admiral Nursing Service

The Reading Agency
Public Health Principal
LMT

Age UK
SCILL

35
VERSION JUNE 2014

Libraries Consultation Plan
Background
The council has to find £40 million worth of savings from its annual budget over the
next few years, in addition to the £32 million which it has already saved through
restructuring and efficiency savings. These savings are being managed through the
‘Sutton’s Future’ programme.
On 15 January, the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee considered and
endorsed the ‘Library Strategy for Sutton 2015 to 2019’. The Library Strategy has
the key aims of:
Literacy: growing the readers of the future
Meeting the needs of an ageing population
Narrowing the digital divide
Creating a viable, sustainable and quality service within available resources.
From December 2014 to February 2015, the council ran a library user survey to
gather information about which libraries people were using, which library services
were being used, and what people felt were important issues for the future.
The survey indicated that 40% of people had Sutton Central as their main library and
half of those people whose main library was one of the branches also used Sutton
Central for some of the time. Comments made as part of the survey suggested that,
in general, users are very positive about the service which is being provided. This
reinforces the results of the Residents’ Survey carried out in October 2013, in which
89% of library users said that they were satisfied with the service.
Aim of the Consultation
The consultation will help to inform the decisions on the future of Sutton’s libraries by
providing qualitative and quantitative information about residents’ views on the
proposals.
Methodology
It is recommended that there are five strands to the consultation exercise:
An open public meeting to discuss the proposals
A meeting with invited partners
An online survey (with the option for people without internet access to
complete a hard copy)
A telephone survey
Specific engagement with young people
Set out below are further details of each of those areas.
In addition to these exercises, there would be a separate mechanism for staff from
the library service to make their views known e.g. by sending comments to a
dedicated email address.
1 Open meeting
We could hold an open meeting which members of the public (including non-library
users) could attend to hear about and discuss the proposals.

Version 6

1

July 2015

The event could be held at Sutton Central Library in the Europa Gallery as this is a
convenient location for people to get to.
The event could be advertised through:
posters at the local branches,
the Sutton’s Future website,
social media,
emails to library users,
contact with stakeholder groups e.g. Friends groups, reading groups, etc.
a press release announcing the consultation.
Structure of the meeting
The meeting could follow the following format:
o Introduction by senior manager from the libraries service outlining the
background to the consultation and the proposals.
o Background and context statement from the lead member
o Open questions from the floor.
2 Online Survey
An online survey is economical to run and analyse and can gather the views of a
large number of people (for example, 1,800 people responded to the library user
survey). Conducting such as survey would be in line with the approach used for the
‘green garden waste’, ‘theatres’ and ‘children’s centres’ consultations.
While the survey would be open to all residents to answer, it is not likely to be
answered by a representative sample of Sutton’s population. There will be a selfselection bias towards people who are library users and, based on the results from
the library user survey, those people will tend to be female and have an older age
profile than the borough as a whole.
The online survey could be advertised by sending links to:
o Sutton’s online panel
o Library users through the library notice facility (there are 20,500 email
addresses recorded)
o Library stakeholder groups (see Annex B)
As with the open meeting, it could also be advertised through the Sutton’s Future
website, a press release and social media.
For those people who do not have internet access, a paper version of the online
survey would be made available through the contact centre, and at libraries,
museums, leisure centres and other council buildings.
Consultation best practice means that the survey cannot only ask for views about
saving money through making changes to library services. It will need to include
questions around other options which the Council might use to plug the funding gap
e.g. by making cuts elsewhere or though increasing Council Tax (although it can be
stated why these options are not viable for Sutton Council).
3 Telephone survey
A telephone survey was carried out as part of the Sutton’s Future consultations on
‘green garden waste’ and ‘theatres’. The telephone survey itself would be carried
Version 6

2

July 2015

out by a third party organisation and, if 1,000 people were interviewed, would cost
around £10,000. To minimise the costs, the development of the survey and analysis
of the results could be done in-house.
The main benefit of conducting a telephone survey in addition to the online survey is
that the questions could be addressed to a representative (by age, gender, ethnicity
and working status) sample of Sutton’s population. It would include people who do
not use the library (who in the Residents’ Survey of October 2013 made up 41% of
the respondents). The results of this survey would not therefore have the bias
towards library users that the online survey is likely to have.
4 Engagement with young people (16-25)
There are several groups of young people involved with the library service who
would be included within the stakeholder groups, and therefore encouraged to take
part in the online survey. However, the respondents to the Library User Survey were
under-representative of young people and it is likely that there would be a similar low
response rate to the open meeting and online survey from that demographic. If we
are to properly gauge the views of young people, we would therefore need to take
some additional steps to ensure their participation.
These options might include:
Present the initiative to the Sutton Youth Parliament to get their views and
buy-in. The Youth Parliament could decide on the most appropriate way to
consult their peers, but we might support and allow the group to put individual
focus groups together (4-6 young people per group) and empower them to
deliver a 30 minute consultation
Incentives for taking part (e.g. vouchers) would greatly increase the response
rate.
Text consultation: this could be done alongside the telephone survey
(preferably by the same company) and would be likely to have a higher
response rate. Texting 5 – 8 key questions to be answered with a 1-5 rating
would be a quick and efficient way to consult a large group of young people.
The main difficulty would be in getting access to phone numbers of sufficient
young people within Sutton. When the telephone survey is commissioned
we will ask the company to provide quotes for this exercise too.
Timetable
There is no legally prescribed period for a consultation of this nature, but good
practice (and the need to avoid possible challenge) suggests that a period of 8 to 12
weeks would be appropriate.
If decisions were taken on the options on which to consult at the Environment and
Neighbourhoods Committee meeting on 17 September then, allowing for the ‘call-in’
period, the consultation could start on Wednesday 23 September. 12 weeks from
that date would give an end-date for the consultation of 16 December.
The chart below shows the main dates and when the various consultation activities
would take place. The community engagement work – the public and partners’
meeting, the youth engagement and the telephone survey – would take place early
Version 6

3

July 2015

in the consultation period. This will mean that the results from those activities can be
analysed and written up early in the process. That data could then be combined with
the early results from the online survey in a draft report which could be circulated for
relevant clearances by mid to late November. The report could then by updated with
final online survey results towards the end of December so that a semi-final draft can
be prepared for the Chair’s Briefing meeting in the second week of January.

Version 6

4

July 2015

Libraries Consultation timetable
Consultation period 23 Sept to 16 Dec
July

August

September

Book rooms for open meetings
Get quotes for telephone survey
Agree Youth Engagement proposals
Commission telephone survey
Develop main and children's surveys (online and hard copy)
Develop advertising material and press release
Environment and Neighbourhoods Committee Meeting (17th Sept)
Start of consultation (23rd Sept)
Open meetings to be advertised
Online survey to go live
Online survey to be advertised through social media, etc
Hard copy surveys to be distributed to locations
Telephone survey fieldword conducted
Open Public Meeting
Partners Meeting
Youth engagement work
Analysis of data from telephone survey and open meetings
Draft report on 'early findings'
Draft report on recommendations for library servide
Circulate recommendations report for legal clearance
Environment and Neighbourhoods Committee Meeting (26th Nov)
Clearance of draft recommendations report with ST
Online survey closes (16 Dec)
Report updated with final results
Draft report sent for Chair's Brief for February E&N meeting (8th Jan)
Chair's Brief for February E&N meeting (14th Jan)
Final report needed for E&N meeting (22 Jan)
Environment and Neighbourhoods Committee Meeting (4 Feb)

Version 6

5

July 2015

October

November December

4 Feb
January February

Resources Needed
The table below summarises the main tasks required for each of the recommended
options and when those tasks would take place. Resources would need to be made
available from the Communications Team, library service, the Commissioning and
Governance team and the Youth Engagement Team.
Team
Comms Team

Main Tasks
Develop advertising material and press
release. Advertise the consultation e.g.
website, social media, email distributions
Commissioning Public meetings – logistics
and Business
Public meetings – facilitation and note
Insight Team
taking
Development of online survey(s)
Production of paper version of survey(s)
Commissioning of Telephone Survey
Analysis and report writing
Libraries Staff
Development of online survey(s)
Send out emails to library users with link
to online survey
Distribute paper versions of the survey.
Public meetings – facilitation and note
taking
Development of conclusions from the
consultation
Youth Service
Assist with the Youth engagement
activities

Version 6

6

When
Need to have all this in
place by 23rd
September.
By September
Early October
By 23rd September
By 23rd September
By end of September
October to December
By 23rd September
By end of September
October to December
Early October
November - December
Early October

July 2015

Annex A: Library addresses and locations
Library
Sutton Central Library

Address
St Nicholas Way, Sutton, SM1 1EA

Beddington Library

The Broadway, Beddington, CR0 4QR

Cheam Library

Church Road, Cheam, SM3 8QH

Library@Life Centre

Sutton Life Centre, Alcorn Road, Sutton, SM3 9PX

Library@Phoenix
Centre

Mollinson Drive, Roundshaw, Wallington, SM6 9NZ

Library@Westcroft
Centre

Westcroft Leisure Centre, Westcroft Road, Carshalton,
SM5 2TG

Circle Library

Green Wrythe Lane, Carshalton, SM5 1JJ

Wallington Library

Shotfield, Wallington, SM6 0HY

Worcester Park Library

Stone Place, Windsor Road, Worcester Park, KT4 8ES

Version 6

7

July 2015

Version 6

8

July 2015

Libraries Needs Assessment and Priority Calculation
This document explains the data and methodology used to carry out the Library
Needs Assessment and Priority Calculations.
The Needs Assessment has been completed on a range of key indicators, which
include use of Library services, demographic need, proximity calculations, and
agreed Library Strategy aims, total scores have not been weighted.
Table 1:
Libraries ranked on all key indicators.
Table 2:
Libraries ranked on the use of Library services element.
Table 3:
Libraries ranked on demographic need element.
Table 4:
Libraries ranked on proximity calculations.
Table 5:
Libraries ranked on Library Strategy aims.
Table 6:
Key Indicator summary and background data.
Table 7:
Mobile and Housebound Service data.

Notes on Library Catchment Area
The Library catchment area of each Library is based on registered active members making
up more than 5% of the population of a Lower Super Output Area (LSOA). The exception to
this is Beddington Library where no LSOA contained more than 5% of registered active
members within the population. Here the catchment area is the 2 LSOAs containing the most
registered active members.

The following factors included within the Needs Assessment show the Library with
the lowest figures within each category are ranked 9, indicating less need and/or
viability. The Library with the highest figures within each category are ranked 1,
indicating a greater need and/or viability.
Catchment population. (2011 census)
Catchment population of children aged 0  19 years. (2011 census)
Catchment population claiming out of work benefits. (benefits data 2014)
Catchment population of adults with a long standing illness or disability. (2011 census)
Catchment population of Black or Minority Ethnic Residents. (2011 census)
Catchment population of residents aged over 65 years. (2011 census)
Catchment population who are active members  Library catchment residents who have
used the service within the last year. Year up to November 2014, (when the information was
provided)
Total active members  all residents who have used the service in the last year. Year up to
November 2014 (when the information was provided)
Library visits per hour open  yearly visitor figures averaged per hour open to reflect differing
opening hours. (2013/14)
LSOAs in the lowest 30% most deprived in the country.
ICAM use per hour  public access computer use, yearly figure averaged per hour open to
reflect differing opening hours. (2013/14)
Issues per hour open  all item issues, yearly figure averaged per hour open to reflect
differing opening hours. (2013/14)

The following factors included within the Needs Assessment show the Library with
the highest figures within each category are ranked 9, showing less need and/or
viability. The Library with the lowest figures within each category are ranked 1,
indicating a greater need and/or viability.
Estimated average household income  estimated from Office for National Statistics.
Number of Libraries within a 10 minute drive  google map data from the base Library
Number of Libraries within 20 minutes by public transport  google map and transport data
from the base Library
Cost per issue  total Library running costs divided by the number of issues per year 201314
(last year for which full figures were available)
Cost per visit  total Library running costs divided by the number of visits per year 201314
Building performance  total cost to run each site 201314 (last year for which full figures
were available)
% of active members using other Libraries  all residents, members of one Library, and using
other Libraries. (provided by the Library Management System in Feb 2015)
% catchment population who have level 4 qualifications and above. (2011 census)
% catchment population who have access to a car or van. (2011 census)

Background
The Sutton needs assessment was initially based on the Bolton assessment method,
which had been a successful model. Between January and April 2015, the needs
assessment has been amended and refined to reflect DCMS recommendations to
other borough Councils, i.e. Sheffield and Lincolnshire, to ensure we are following
best practice recommendations and guidelines for informing assessments.

Table 1 - Libraries ranked on all Key Indicators
Key
Lowest
Lowest
Highest
Lowest
Most
Most
Lowest
Lowest active Highest cost Highest cost =
population = number =
income =
numbers
Libraries
Libraries visitor figure member =
= highest
highest rank
highest rank highest rank highest rank claiming = accessible = accessible = = highest highest rank
rank
highest rank highest rank highest rank
rank
Library Ranking
Table

Catchment
Population

Catchment
population
of children
aged 0-19
years

Beddington
Cheam
Library @ Westcroft
Library @ Life Centre

9
2
5
7

9
4
6
7

4
9
8
2

9
8
5
7

Worcester Park

3

5

7

6

Circle
Library @ Phoenix
Wallington
Sutton

4
8
5
1

3
8
2
1

1
3
6
5

3
4
2
1

Key

Library Ranking
Table

Beddington
Cheam
Library @ Westcroft
Library @ Life Centre

Worcester Park
Circle
Library @ Phoenix
Wallington
Sutton

Estimated Catchment Number of Number of
Library
average
population Libraries
Libraries
Visits per
household claiming
within a 10 within 20 hour open
income
out of work
minute
minutes by
benefits
drive
public
transport

Total active
members

Cost per
issue

Cost per visit

5
5
9
8
1
5
5
6
8

6
6
7
1

9
7
4
5

9
5
4
6

8
5
1
2

9
5
1
2

3

3

3

3

4

4
3
9
9

8
6
2
1

8
7
2
1

9
4
6
7

8
3
6
7

Lowest % =
highest rank

Lowest
Lowest
Lowest
Lowest
Lowest % = Highest % = Highest % = Highest rank
number =
number =
number =
number = highest rank highest rank highest rank = Lower level
highest rank highest rank highest rank highest rank
of viability

Catchment
population
of adults
with a long
standing
illness or
disability

Catchment
Population
of Black or
Minority
Ethnic
Residents

3
8
7
6
9
2
1
5
5

9
4
8
7
5
3
6
2
1

Catchment ICAM Use - Issues per
%
%
% Catchment Total Score
population hours per hour open Catchment Catchment adults with
of over 65 hours open
population population access to a
year olds
who are with level 4
car/van
active
qualificatio (estimate)
members
ns and
above

9
3
5
7
4
6
8
2
1

9
6
8
5
7
3
4
2
1

9
5
3
6
4
8
7
2
1

6
7
5
3
4
8
2
1
9

3
9
8
2

8
9
5
6

5

7

1
4
6
7

1
2
4
3

152
130
117
104
98
96
94
89
85

Highest
cost =
highest
rank

Highest % Lowest
= highest number =
rank
highest
rank

Building % active LSOAs in
performa members the lowest
nce
from
30% most
these
deprived
libraries
areas in
using
the
other
country
libraries
1
9
9
6
8
9
4
5
9
2
4
9

5
7
3
8
9

1
2
3
7
6

9
2
3
4
1

Table 2 - Libraries ranked on Key Indicators - Use of Library Services Element
Key
Lowest active Lowest % =
Lowest
Lowest
Lowest
Highest cost Highest cost Highest rank
member = highest rank
visitor
number =
number =
= highest
= highest = Lower level
highest rank
figure = highest rank highest rank
rank
rank
of viability
highest rank
Library Ranking
Table

Total active
members

%
Catchment
population
who are
active
members

Library
Visits per
hour open

Beddington
Circle
Cheam
Library @ Phoenix
Library @ Life Centre

9
8
5
7
6

9
8
7
6
5

Worcester Park

3

Sutton
Library @ Westcroft
Wallington

1
4
2

6
8
7
2
3
4
9
5
1

3
1
4
2

Issues per ICAM Use hour open hours per
hours open

9
8
5
7
6
4
1
3
2

9
3
6
4
5
7
1
8
2

Cost per
issue

Cost per
visit

Total Score

8
9
5
4
2

9
8
5
3
2

3

4

7
1
6

7
1
6

59
52
40
33
29
28
27
26
21

Table 3 - Libraries ranked on Key Indicators - Demographic Need Element
Key
Lowest
Highest % =
Lowest
Lowest % =
Lowest
Lowest
Highest
number =
highest rank number = highest rank number =
number =
income =
highest rank
highest rank
highest rank highest rank highest rank
Library Ranking
Table

Beddington
Library @ Westcroft
Cheam
Library @ Life Centre

Worcester Park
Library @ Phoenix
Wallington
Circle
Sutton

Lowest
Lowest
Highest rank =
numbers
population = Lower level of
claiming = highest rank
viability
highest rank

LSOAs in
%
Catchment Catchment Catchment Catchment Estimated Catchment Catchment
the lowest
Catchment Population population population population
average
population Population
30% most
population of Black or of adults
of over 65 of children household claiming out
deprived
with level 4
Minority with a long year olds
aged 0-19
income
of work
areas in the qualification
Ethnic
standing
years
benefits rank
country
s and above Residents illness or
disability

9
9
9
9
9
3
4
2
1

3
8
9
2

5
4
6
1
7

9
8
4
7
5
6
2
3
1

3
7
8
6
9
1
5
2
5

9
5
3
7
4
8
2
6
1

9
6
4
7

4
8
9
2

9
5
8
7

9
5
2
7

5

7

6

3

8
2
3
1

3
6
1
5

4
2
3
1

8
5
4
1

Total Score

64
61
56
54
53
45
34
25
23

Table 4 - Libraries ranked on Key Indicators - Proximity Calculation Element
Key
Most
Most
Highest % = Highest % = Highest rank
Libraries
Libraries highest rank highest rank = Lower
accessible = accessible =
level of
highest rank highest rank
viability
Library Ranking
Table

Beddington
Cheam
Library @ Westcroft
Wallington
Sutton
Library @ Life Centre
Library @ Phoenix
Circle

Worcester Park

Number of
Libraries
within a 10
minute drive
rank

5
5
9
6
8
8
5
5
1

Number of
%
% active Total Score
Libraries
Catchment members
within 20
adults with from these
minutes by access to a libraries
public
car/van
using other
transport
(estimate)
libraries
rank
6
8
9
28
6
9
8
28
7
5
5
26
9
4
7
26
9
3
6
26
1
6
4
19
3
2
3
13
4
1
2
12

3

7

1

12

Table 5 - Libraries ranked on Key Indicators - Library Strategy Aims Element
Key
Lowest
Lowest
Lowest
Highest cost Highest rank
number =
number =
number =
= highest
= Lower
highest rank highest rank highest rank
rank
level of
viability
Library Ranking
Table

Beddington
Library @ Westcroft
Library @ Phoenix
Library @ Life Centre

Worcester Park
Cheam
Circle
Wallington
Sutton

ICAM Use hours per
hours open

Catchment
population
of children
aged 0-19
years

9
8
4
5
7
6
3
2
1

9
6
8
7

5
4
3
2
1

Catchment Building Total Score
population performanc
of over 65
e
year olds

9
5
8
7
4
3
6
2
1

1
4
3
2
5
6
7
8
9

28
23
23
21
21
19
19
14
12

Each Library has been ranked in order (1 - 9) on a range of indicators. Some indictors have been ranked from lowest to highest, others from highest to lowest.
A high rank indicates there is a lower level of viability for a Library on a particular indicator.
All ranks have been combined into a total to give an overall indicator of the level of viability for each Library

Table 6 - Library Community Profiles: Key Indicator Summary
Library

Catchment
Population

Catchment
population
of children
aged 0-19
years

Beddington
Cheam
Circle
Library @ Life Centre
Library @ Phoenix
Library @ Westcroft
Sutton
Wallington

2,892
19,145
16,599
11,623
9,205
16,159
142,916
16,159

Worcester Park

17,665

712
4,624
5,020
3,003
2,614
3,864
34,420
10,490
4,331

Library

Beddington
Cheam
Circle
Library @ Life Centre
Library @ Phoenix
Library @ Westcroft
Sutton
Wallington

Worcester Park

% active
members of
these
libraries
using other
libraries
47.53%
34.24%
23.34%
25.24%
23.50%
28.58%
30.17%
31.44%
18.23%

Catchment
Population
of Black or
Minority
Ethnic
Residents
726
3,689
3,965
2,657
2,665
2,379
30,059
9,353

3,254

Number of Catchment Estimated
%
%
%
%
LSOAs in population
average
Catchment Catchment Catchment Catchment
the lowest
claiming
household population population population of adults with
30% most out of work
income
'Hard
with level 4 adults with a access to a
deprived
benefits
Pressed' qualificatio
long
car/van
areas in the
(OAC)
ns and
standing
(estimate)
country,
above
illness or
per
disability
Catchment
(estimate)

Number of
Libraries
within a 10
minute drive

Number
of
Libraries
within 20
minutes
by public
transport

0
0
7
0
3
0
11
2

87
357
1,032
369
586
447
4,973
1,384

43,570
55,596
31,870
38,268
38,715
46,243
44,641
45,001

0%
0%
5.50%
2.90%
0%
6.80%
1%
0.80%

23.3%
35.2%
18.2%
22.3%
24.9%
32.4%
31.4%
30.7%

6.9%
5.6%
7.6%
5.9%
7.7%
5.8%
6.4%
6.4%

83.7%
86.6%
70.1%
81.8%
73.7%
79.6%
76.1%
79.2%

3
3
3
5
3
6
5
4

4
4
3
1
2
5
6
6

0

397

45,683

0%

30.6%

5.4%

82.4%

2

2

Cost per
issue

Cost per
visit

£7.02
£3.73
£8.56
£2.49
£3.70
£1.91
£6.53
£4.33
£3.19

£10.04
£2.94
£5.93
£0.86
£1.04
£0.81
£3.65
£3.47
£2.18

£50,210.56
£231,729.00
£261,292.02
£114,790.59
£132,990.47
£167,232.55
£2,129,302.31
£565,564.18
£212,656.90

5.34
37.36
22.02
39.9
38.95
43.35
182.59
77.42
46.28

Catchment Issues per ICAM Use Total
%
population hour open hours per catchment Catchment
of over 65
hours open
active
population
year olds
(decimal)
members
who are
active
members

461
3,364
1,702
1,618
1,197
2,282
21,079
6,240
2,673

7.63
29.49
15.25
13.83
10.96
18.34
101.88
62.00
31.69

0.31
2.30
5.52
3.58
5.48
1.58
16.22
6.00
2.22

474
3,060
2,582
2,830
2,666
3,195
21,805
6,468
4,026

16.39%
15.98%
15.55%
24.34%
28.96%
19.77%
15.25%
40.02%
22.79%

Building
Visits per
Performance hour open

Table 7 - Mobile and Housebound Service
Mobile Library

Mobile

Visitor Figs
p/a

Number of
Issues p/a

Total
members
using
service

Cost per
issue

Cost per visit

% of
members
using other
Libraries

Housebound
Library

Number of
visits p/a

Number of
Issues p/a

Total
clients

Cost per
issue

Cost per
visit

15,948

32,247

683

£4.94

£9.74

36.77%

Housebound

1,248

8,792

100

£2.26

£15.94

Beddington Library
Community Profile






Situated in the east of the borough, with a catchment area
covering Beddington North Ward
Catchment population of 2,892
44% Multicultural Metropolitans, 85.3% white population, 6.8%
Asian/Asian British.
85% owner occupiers and an average 2.35% in receipt of out
of work benefits.

In general, library catchment areas include all Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs)
where 5% or more of the population borrow from the library. However, there were no
LSOAs where that was the case. The catchment area for Beddington Library is
therefore taken to be the two LSOAs which contain the highest numbers of active
Library members.

Map 1: Library Catchment Area Map

Population and Households
Table 1: Age Profile (2011 census)
Age Group

% of catchment
area
18.8%

LB Sutton average %

0-15 yrs

Beddington Library
catchment area
545

16-24 yrs

315

10.9%

10.3%

25-49 yrs

956

33.1%

38.2%

50-64 yrs

615

21.3%

17.2%

65+

461

15.9%

14.3%

Totals

20.0%

2,892

In the London Borough of Sutton as a whole, 79% of the population (in the 2011
Census) described their ethnicity as ‘White’. The proportion in the Beddington
Library Catchment Area is 85.3%; the proportion of Asian/Asian British is 6.8%.
Table 2: Ethnicity Profile (2011 census)
Catchment
residents

White

Mixed/multiple
ethnic groups

Asian/Asian
British

Black/African/Caribbean/Black
British

Other ethnic group

2,892

2,166

96

379

227

24

100.0%

85.3%

3.5%

6.8%

3.6%

0.8%

Within the catchment area, there were 1,135 households identified in the Census
2011 (around 1.45% of the total of 78,174 in the London Borough of Sutton as a
whole).




85% were owned
5% social rented
9% privately rented

The level of home ownership is significantly higher than the borough average of
68%.




25% of the households consisted of a single person
24% contained couples (married, civil partnership or cohabiting) with
dependent children
5% were made up of lone parents with dependent children

The averages for the borough were 30%, 22% and 7% respectively.

Indices of Deprivation

The Indices of Deprivation 2010 provides a relative ranking of areas across England
& Wales according to their level of deprivation. It includes the Index of Multiple
Deprivation which brings together 37 different indicators covering specific aspects or
dimensions of deprivation including income, employment, health and disability,
education, skills and training, barriers to housing and services, living environment
and crime. The majority of the data underpinning the IMD 2010 represents 2008
although some data covers a number of years.
The Beddington Library catchment area contains no LSOAs in the lowest 30% most
deprived areas.
Economic Activity

Latest benefit claimant statistics indicate that the number of people claiming out of
work benefits in the area is slightly lower than the borough average.
Table 3: Out of Work Benefit Claimants
Benefit

Employment and Support Allowance
Job Seekers Allowance

Number of
claimants in
Catchment
Area
50
37

% of
population
aged 16-64 in
Catchment
Area
2.7%
2.0%

LB Sutton
Average

3.5%
2.0%

(Data as at February 2014)

Economic Activity and Income

The estimated mean annual household income (as modelled by the GLA) for the
Beddington Library Catchment Area is £43,570 – broadly the same as the average
for LSOAs in LBS as a whole of £43,568. The range for the LSOAs making up the
catchment area is, however, relatively wide: the lowest estimated mean is £39,067
and the highest is £48,073.
Following the Census 2011, the Office for National Statistics classified each Output
Area into 8 supergroups. 44% of the population of the Beddington Library
Catchment area were in Output Areas classified as ‘multicultural metropolitans’; with
none being in ones classified as ‘Hard Pressed Living’ (compared to 1.4% of the
population of the borough as a whole).

Internet Usage

According to OFCOM, all London Councils have the highest rank of broadband
availability in the UK.
Table 4: London Councils Broadband Availability
Broadband
Availability
London Councils

Average Speed

Superfast availability

20.4 m/bits per second

89.1%

Broadband
Take-up
82.9%

Qualifications

The proportion of population with higher level qualifications in the Beddington Library
catchment is lower than the Sutton average of 30%.
From the Census 2011:



21% of the population of the Beddington Library Catchment Area aged 16+
had no qualifications – compared to 19% of the borough as a whole
23% had level 4 qualifications and above

Health & Disability

Benefit claimant data shows that in February 2014:



110 people were claiming Disability Living Allowance within the catchment
area (5.8% of the working age population)
50 people aged 65+ were claiming Attendance Allowance (10.8% of the
population over 65)

The equivalent figures for Sutton as a whole were 5.7% and 13.2% respectively.
The Census 2011 asked people whether their day-to-day activities were limited
because of a long-term disability or illness.



199 people (6.9%) in the Beddington Library catchment area said that their
activities were limited ‘a lot’
222 (7.7%) said that their activities were limited ‘a little’

The equivalent figures for Sutton as a whole were 6.4% and 7.9% respectively.

The table below shows the people from the Census 2011 who said that they were
providing unpaid care for someone because of old age or disability.
Table 5: Provision of unpaid care
Number in
catchment area
195
37
63

1 to 19 hours of unpaid care
20 to 49 hours of unpaid care
50+ hours of unpaid care

% of catchment
area
6.7%
1.3%
2.2%

% for
Borough
6.5%
1.2%
1.9%

Table 6: Library Accessibility

Opening hours per day:
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Opening hours per week
Number of floors
Adapted toilets
Accessible by public
transport
Parking capacity
Borough Libraries within
a 10 minute drive
Borough libraries within
20 minutes on public
transport
% of adults with access
to a car or van

Open or
closed
Closed
Open
Closed
Open
Open
Open
Closed

Opening time

Closing time

Closed
14:00
Closed
09:30
14:00
09:30
Closed

Closed
18:00
Closed
13:00
18:00
17:00
Closed

Closed 13.00-14.00

18
1
No public toilet facility
Bus
Street parking only
Library@ Westcroft, Wallington Library,
Library@ Phoenix.
Library@ Westcroft, Wallington Library,
Library@ Phoenix. Sutton Central Library.
83.7%

Buses: 407, 410, 455

Accessibility

83.7% of households in the Beddington Library Catchment Area have access to one
or more cars or vans in the Census 2011, compared to 76.6% of households in the
borough as a whole.
3 other borough Libraries can be reached within a 10 minute drive from Beddington
Library:




Wallington Library
Library@ Phoenix
Library@ Westcroft

Map 2: 10 minute drive area from Beddington Library

The area is also well served by public transport, and 4 borough libraries can be
reached in 20 minutes by bus:





Sutton Central Library
Wallington Library
Library@ Phoenix
Library@ Westcroft

Table 7: Beddington Library Statistics

% saying good or very good library (Nov 2009)

84%

Active members (2013/14)

474

Active Beddington Library members using
other libraries
All members
Public internet usage – hours (2013/14)
Visitor figures (2013/14)
Change in visitor numbers (06/07- 13/14)

47.53%
1,190
294
5,001
-78.7%

Item issues (2013/14)

7,148

Cost per issue (2013/14)

£7.02

Cost per visit (2013/14)

£10.04

Physical condition of building
Running costs (2013/14 budget)

Good
£50,210.56

Gross internal area (sq m)

Approx 30 m2

Net internal area (sq m)

Approx 30 m2

To Wimbledon
and London
St Helier
To Wimbledon
and London

Worcester
Park

4

12

15

2

3

3

3

5

48
To Epsom
and Dorking

4

15

19

6

Carshalton

2
8
3

5

5

3

3

To Epsom
and Dorking

3

6

9
15

3

2

Wallington

6

< 5 buses per hour

5

Rail Network

5
10

5

(Monday-Friday daytime)
in each direction

9

Tramlink

2

2
2
9 8
Belmont

1

To Epsom
Downs

Number of stopping
trains per hour

3

2
2

Number of buses
per hour
(Monday-Friday daytime)

10

5

13

2

To West
Croydon
and
London
Waddon

9
16

Carshalton
Beeches

5
11

13

11

6

2

Cheam

5-9 buses per hour

6

6

4

16

Sutton

2

Bus Network

3

7

7

West Sutton

10

2
11

9

Showing Areas of
Deficiency

> 10 buses per hour

8

3

Sutton Transport
Network and Libraries

Hackbridge

5

Sutton Common

To Croydon
(Tramlink)

3

11

5
8

4

Therapia Lane

3

23

2

6

4
6

15

7

3

8

3

5
13

Beddington
Lane

3

6

7

2

3

Mitcham Junction

To Wimbledon
and London

Areas >400m from a
bus route

7
5

Libraries

3

N

Banstead

3

April 2015
Not to Scale

This map is based on Ordnance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller
of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100008655X 2015

Percentage of members using Libraries other than their registered Library (March 2014-March 2015)
Transaction Library

User Library

Beddington Cheam
Beddington
Cheam
Circle
Life Centre
Phoenix
Westcroft
Mobile
Sutton
Wallington
Worcester
Park

Circle

Life Centre Phoenix

Westcroft

Mobile

Sutton

Worcester
Wallington Park

ANY*

X
0.07
0.2
0.04
1.6
0.4
0
0.62
1.16

1.08
X
0.41
2.73
0.11
0.83
2.77
4.6
0.59

1.51
0.38
X
0.89
0.57
1.79
2.92
1.72
1.14

3.66
3.95
3.54
X
1.14
1.89
4.31
4.38
0.96

11.83
0.55
1.14
1.06
X
3.55
1.85
1.78
6.16

13.55
4.63
7.58
5.11
8.53
X
10.46
8.56
13.74

0.43
1.06
0.81
2.27
0.15
1.02
X
1.84
0.99

9.89
25.35
12.22
15.19
8.11
14.52
16.46
X
15.38

19.35
2.16
3.38
1.38
12.8
13.23
10.46
10.94
X

3.01
4.29
0.37
3.05
0.19
0.53
1.54
3.14
0.54

47.53
34.24
23.34
25.24
23.5
28.58
36.77
30.17
31.44

0.1

4.12

0.17

1.75

0.02

2.12

0.27

12.38

0.68

X

18.23

* percentage of users belonging to that library who have used any other library in the period selected
i.e. If user belonging to branch X uses branches A and B, s/he will count in the statistics for each of those branches and once in the ANY column.

Mon

Cheam
SLC
Phoenix
Westcroft
Circle
W Park
Wallingto
Sutton

Cheam
SLC
Phoenix
Westcroft
Circle
W Park
Wallingto
Sutton

0
9.5
9.5
9.5
0
0
0
8.5

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
8.5

Tue

9.5
9.5
9.5
9.5
8.5
9.5
9.5
10.5

6.5
9.5
9.5
9.5
6.5
6.5
6.5
10.5

Wed

7.5
9.5
9.5
9.5
7.5
7.5
7.5
10.5

7.5
9.5
9.5
9.5
7.5
7.5
7.5
10.5

Thu

7.5
9.5
9.5
9.5
7.5
7.5
7.5
10.5

4
5.5
5.5
5.5
4
4
4
10.5

Fri

8.5
9.5
9.5
9.5
7.5
8.5
8.5
10.5

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
10.5

Sat

Sun

7.5
7.5
7.5
7.5
7.5
7.5
7.5
7.5

6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6

0
4
4
4
0
0
0
3.5

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
3.5

Current Hours
open per
week

40.5
59
59
59
38.5
40.5
40.5
61.5
398.5
Revised hours
open p.w.
24
30.5
30.5
30.5
24
24
24
60
247.5

Equality & Diversity Forum
10th November 2015
Report of the Executive Head of Community Safety and Youth Engagement
Hate Incidents Update
Ward location: not applicable

Report author: Chris Lyons,
Community Safety Manager. 020
8649 0667
Lead Councillor: Ruth Dombey

Area Served: Borough-wide

Summary
This report describes the oversight that is in place for tracking, and responding to hate
incidents in Sutton.

1.
1.1

Background
We classify hate incidents under the following categories:






Race
Disability
Religious faith or belief
Sexual orientation
Gender identity

1.2

These may be a crime and will be pursued by the Police as hate crime.

1.3

The Safer Sutton partnership took on responsibility for monitoring and oversight of
hate incidents on behalf of the Council in 2009. We collect information from across
the Council (including safeguarding) and through third party reporting centres. In
2009 we commissioned an expanded community safety survey to specifically
understand community safety concerns of Muslim communities in the Borough. This
showed an under-reporting of low level religious and race hate incidents. Colleagues
from adult safeguarding also produced evidence showing under-reporting of hate
incidents against people with learning or physical disabilities.

1.4

In 2010 the Safer Sutton Partnership commissioned Stop Hate UK (SHUK) to
provide a 24/7 reporting system for Sutton.

2.

Issues

2.1

Our latest community safety survey continues to show a number of low level but
potentially high impact hate crime signals across the borough. These are
increasingly of a religious as well as racial nature.

1

Stop Hate UK third party reporting
2.2 Since the previous Equality & Diversity Forum in July, the Safer Sutton Partnership
has continued promoting the Stop Hate UK line across the borough.


Continued liaison and embedding of the Stop Hate line within local police referral
processes.



Citizens Advice Bureau promoting reporting through licenced premises across
Sutton.



In October SSPS lead the coordination of two awareness raising events in Sutton
High Street to promote National hate crime awareness week which takes place
between 13-20th October. The event was attended by partners from the Police
Community Safety Unit, Safer Transport Team, Citizens Advice Bureau and Age UK.

3rd Party Reporting:
2.3

The nature of referrals from Stop Hate UK is similar to previous years, based upon
malicious neighbour disputes where disablism and homophobia are aggravating
factors.

2.4

During Q1 2015-16 there were 36 contacts to the Stop Hate Helpline a significant
increase on the previous quarter and above the quarterly average for the previous
12 months. However 31 contacts were from the same repeat caller. The majority of
contacts were by phone with two by email and two by SMS text facility.

Police Reports

2.5

In financial year 2014/15 there was 363 reported hate incidents.

2.6

In 2014/15 the majority of incidents (95%) were of a racial nature, followed by 5%
based on prejudice about sexual orientation.

2.7

All hate crime suffers from large scale underreporting so the apparent low numbers
are unlikely to be genuine reflections of actual offence levels within the borough.

2.8

In 2014/15 the top 3 wards for hate incident calls to the police are Sutton Central, St.
Helier, and Wandle Valley. This follows similar patterns to previous trends.

2.9

The current sanction detection rate in FY 2014/15 for homophobic, racist & religious
hatred offences is 34.3%. This is above the current MPS average of 25.0%

3.

Financial implications

3.1

None.

2

4.

Contribution to core values and corporate goals

4.1

Hate incidents and hate crime can leave individuals and communities isolated. Aside
from the legal duties on public authorities tackling hate incidents is critical to Sutton
as a Borough where all can take part and all can take pride. Oversight of the process
through the Safer Sutton Partnership means that solutions to issues can be
designed involving all the appropriate agencies.

5.

Equality and Diversity impact assessment

5.1

Provision of effective monitoring and oversight of hate incidents ensures issues
experienced by specific groups can be tackled and resolved.

6.

Background papers
None

3

